
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/O/V OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

A Weaver PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim cimmissioner 603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Melissa A. Hardy

Director

May 16, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to amend an existing contract with New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with
Disabilities, Inc., d/b/a Parent Information Center (VC#177245), Concord, NH, for Family-to-
Family services which support families and caregivers of children with and without special health
care needs, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $610,000
from $690,000 to $1,300,000, modifying the Scope of Services, and extending the completion
date from June 30, 2023 to June 30.2025, effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval. 60% Federal Funds. 40% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 16, 2021, item #29
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on February 16,2022, item #22.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of Family-to-Family services, operated
by and for parents and caregivers of children with and without special health care needs. Family-
to-Family Services include the Family-to-Family Health Information Center. Birth through 8 Early
Childhood Care & Education Advisory Team Coordination, Watch Me Grow system coordination,
and advisory support of family leadership and family voice in Maternal and Child Health. Job
responsibilities have been shifted within the Bureau for Family Centered Services (BFCS) to
provide training coordination and technical assistance to this program.

Approximately 110,565 children from birth to age eight (8) years, with and without special
heath care needs, and their families and caregivers will be Impacted annually.

Children with special healthcare needs (CSHCN) is defined under New Hampshire
Revised Statues Annotated 132:13, II. as children "who have or are at increased risk for chronic
physical, developmental, behavioral, or emotional conditions and who also require health related
services of a type of amount beyond that required by children generally." This includes children
and youth ages birth to age twenty-one (21) with health conditions who have a biologic,
psychological, and/or cognitive basis; have lasted or are virtually certain to last for at least one
year result in limited function, activities or social roles in comparison with health age peers in
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general areas of physical, cognitive, emotional and social growth and development; and have a
need for medical care and related services, physiological services, or education services over
and above the usual care for the child's age.

The Contractor will continue to maintain a statewide Family-To-Family Health Information
Center, to assist BFCS staff with understanding and providing services that are family-centered.
This is done by providing family voice" to the Bureau's planning, and program implementation. In
one example. Contractor staff review public^facing documents and materials to ensure they are;
family-friendly. The Contractor will continue to coordinate with the Department in the review and
development of Departmental policies, procedures and proposed changes in services to ensure
family participation in decision-making. Additionally, the Contractor will continue to coordinate with
State agencies and local service organizations to ensure children with special healthcare needs
are adequately represented in system design, planning and service delivery across the system of

. care in New Hampshire.

The Department will monitor services by collecting key data and metrics, which includes
aggregate, de-identified demographic, performance, and service datar as well, as client
satisfaction.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children with, and at risk for
special health care needs and their families may not have access to a primary resource center
for health information, family connection, and Watch Me Grow activities. Without the additional
support for the Early Childhood Cpmprehenslve System^ children and their families stateyiride.may
not have their voices.taken into consideration. Additionally, services may not be coordinated in a
manner that ensures families receive comprehensive continuity of services without duplication.

Area senred: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: ALN #93.994, FAIN #80440148. ALN #93.667, FAIN
#2001NHSOSR, ALN #93.575, FAIN #2101NHCCDF, ALN #93.575, FAIN #2106NHCDC6. ALN
#93.391, FAIN #NH750T000031

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

JRespectfully submitted,

LorkA\ Weaver M

Intenm Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities far citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-093-930010-51910000 HHS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL

SERVICES

25Ve Federal Funds, 75% General Funds, 0% Other Funds Title V Maternal Child Health Block Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Vendor#177245

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93001000 $180,000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00

,2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93001000 $180,000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00

2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief • 93001000 $0.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00

2025 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93001000 $0.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00

Sub Total $360,000.00 $360,000.00 $720,000.00

05-95-093-930010-78580000 HHS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SOCIAL SERVICES

100% Federal Funds, 0% Geoeral Funds, 0% Other Funds Children and Families Social Services Block Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Vendor#177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93001000 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 93001000 $15,000.00 -  $0.00 $15,000.00

Sub Total $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

05-95-042-421110-29780000 HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DEVLP-QUALITY ASSURE
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds Child Care Development Block Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Vendor#177245

State Fiscal-

Year
Class/Account" Class Title . Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42117708 . $75,000.00 $0.00 .  $75,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117708 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00

2024 102-500731 . Contracts for Proqram Services 42117708 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

. 2025 .  102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42117708 $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

Sub Total $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $300,000.00

05-95-042-421110-24290000 HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds Child Care Development Block Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Vendor#177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 , Contracts for Proqram Services 42117773 $50,000.00 ' $0.00 $50,000.00

2023 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117773 $50,000.00 " $0.00 . - $50,000.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42117773 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for.Proqram Services 42117773 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

Sub Total $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $200,000.00

05-95-690-901010-57710000 HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19 HEALTH
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds COVID-19 Disparity Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Vendor#177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number . Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 .074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90577170 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90577170 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

Sub Total $50,000.00 . $0.00 $50,000:00

Overall Total $690,000.00 $610,000.00 $1,300,000.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail
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Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Family to Family Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") ̂ d New Hampshire Coalition for
Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. ("the Contractor").

' WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 16, 2021, (Item #29), as iamended on February 16, 2022, (Item #22), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms arid conditions specified in the Contract as'amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE; in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto'agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1:8, Price Limitation, to read: .

$1,300,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

RobertW. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of .Work, Subsection
.1.1, Paragraph 1.1.2.,'to read:

1.1.2. Reserved.

5. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Family-To-Family Health
Information Center, Subsection 2.14., to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall assist parent/family leadership groups in their organizational
development by offering technical assistance and administrative support as a strategy to
ensure needs of families are communicated.to the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Family-To-Family Health
Information Center, Subsection 2.16., Paragraph 2.16.3., to read:

2.16.3. Reserved.

7. Modify Exhibit & Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Family-To-Family Health
Information Center, Subsection 2.16., Paragraph 2.16.12., Subparagraph 2.16.12.6. through
2.16.12.7., to read:

2.16:12.6. Reserved.

2.16.12.7. Title V services for CSHCN.

8. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3, Partners in Health (PIH) Training,
■  through Subparagraph 3.3.2.3., to read:

3.3.2.3. Reserved.

9. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 7, Staffing, Subsecji£in,s7.4.,

H  ■
New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. Contractor Initials

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date 5/19/2023
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Paragraph 7.4.3., to read:

7.4.3. Reserved.

10. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 7, Staffing, Subsection 7.5., to read:

7.5. The Contractor shall provide the Department with an attestation within 15 days of the
Effective Date of Amendment #2 that all Contractor workforce associated with fulfilling the
obligations of this Agreement are, based on NH DHHS provided criteria herein and their job
responsibility requirements, eligible to participate in services associated with this Agreement.

11. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be "on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be.In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit,C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-2Amendment #1 Budget.

12. Add Exhibit C-3. Amendment #2 Budget, to read which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. Contractor Initials

RFA-2022.DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A02' Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract, and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon "Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/19/2023

Date ■

—'OocuSigntd by:

iw»?,<n,4f.r.c<Qg

Name; Melissa Hardy
Title: Director Division of.Long Term Supports and

Services

New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc.

5/19/2023-

Date

OocwSlor»«d by:

Au'ciuitc
V  7PAA>Ae?H1flO,

(s|ame- wicheTle Lewis ~
Title. Executive Director

.  New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, lnc.A-S-1.2

RFP-2022-bLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A02 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OecuSlgntd by:

5/19/2023 .

Date Name: Robyn cuarino

Attorney

I. hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, lnc.A-S-1.2

RFP-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A02 . Page 4 of 4
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Exhfek C-4 BudQM - AfMndrMM (2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

H«w M«mp«l*e CeelUoo tor CIttzent witi OlutiiaUti. Inc.

Cecttnclor Nam*: dtWa Ptrartt Information Cantor

Budo*l Poqtiost for fomiy to Famtf S^kot

Budgtl Ptttod: July 1.2«2>Owio W. 202'

1£2S2 Centrietor Sfiaro /Match _FimdodO2_0HHSeontra»

L_ToMl_Safcrj/W»2e^
2. Emdovo Bonatia

). ConauUm

4. Ewamera:

RanN

Rapalf and MaWananca

Ptrtheaa/Daptedalion

5. Supptaa:

PtiafmeeY

Madical

Office

a. Carent Ejpenaaa

Tafcphone

Poataoa

_i_Sitoa1gtiof^
_Aidil_sr|a_^g^
ktaurance

Boiid Ewiewea

9. Sofiwaia

^Oj^JJartatingCommu]!^^
11. Staff Eeucation ana Ttalnlna

12. St*ieef«racia/Aoreen»eft»

U. Other (ipeoliearjbtTienaiiorv):

Lenoino Uhrary

SUpenaa a Maatlno Ewenaaa

Ctiual ana Unqdsae Si»pen

Indiraa Aa a Una Ram

TOTAL

Miraci As A Parcant of Diraet

RFA-2022-OLTSS4«^AMIL-OI-AO2

' NawHampahjraCeaUsnferCfUtana 'nRh DiaabUes. Inc.
OA/a Pareit IrSennatien Carter

{h
1 Of 3
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Ezhtoll C-3 BwIgM - AtMndmMl t2

N*w Hampshir* Oapartmant of Health and Human Services

New HamptMn CoaWon for CUzini wlOi DtuUKIet,

Contrector Nune: dftM Panm Mermttion CcfiMr

Budeit RtqueM for FmHy^e^imty Servlect (B4)

Budget Period: Jidy 1.202Mune M. 2024

Urw Kern

IProgn Contnclor Shire f Milch Fundia ay DMHS eenaeci ihin

1. Tom Sejefy/WeQei

2. emciOYee BorwIiB'

). ConMterU

«■ Eqapmere:

Repilr end Melreenence

_Pi£cl«so/Oeg2^!iS£.
5j_Sug£jM^

EduceUonal

Ptietinecy

7. Ocojoenev
S. ■ C JrerK Ejoemes

TelBctwte
Peiteoe
SiOiqlotloig
AudK ino Lioil
Ifwnnce
Boetd Ejoensw

9. Soitwire
iO, MirKetMa/CoitetKrtettlora
il, Stifl Eduettlon end TnWna
12. SiKieeNreetVAoroemerea
IS, Other (lueclflertateifc ihOTdMorrl:
LerdMg_^rtQr_
Sttoendi a Meeflno Ewneee
Ciairil end Urwubtlc Suopon
Indlreei As a Line Hem

bidlrect As A Percent e( DKeet

RFA-20224LTS»«a-FAMn.-01 -ACK
New Hemp**** CeiHien for Citizens rittA QtsiMUes, Inc.
d/bre Perers Mermetlen Cereer

Coitraetor IrUeis £
P.ige 2 of)
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Ntw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

ContrectorNa

M*w Hampihe* CotWan ferCKtcen* wDt OiubttJas. Sic.

•: d/M Parwn MOmutlen Ctntar

Budget Reeucitfor FainaH»fwnly Services (CCDFWMC)

Budget Period: Jtdy 1,2e22^ur>e 20.2024

LIrw kern

I^PrejM Corurector Stttre / Match Funded by 0HH3 cont/ect share

1. Total 5eleryA>r»Qe»

2. EftdetreeBenetlts

). Consuterts

4. Edikprrtere:

Retkal

Repeir end Mekeenertee

Pachase/Oeprecietlen

S. Sietdles:

PtiBTTtecy

7. OeeupertCY

8. Cjierk Ej^erses

_Tetoghone
Posieoe

BiBscripllora

Audit end Leoel

tnsmice

Board E^oetges

9. SotNiare

10. MerlretlrevCotTOTurecellotts

It. StetlEducettonewTrtWrw

12. SifceettreciVAoreemetks

U. Other (speotKagtafcmencetorv):
Lertdino Ubrery

Stipends a Meeikio ErdWises

CJasetend urqiisue Stsipon

indkeci As a Line Item S.7S2.00

ktdireei As A Parcera of Direei

RFA-2022-OLTSS4»^AMn.-01-AQ2.

New Hampshire CeaUon (or Citizens with DisetdKles. Inc.

dibfa Parert Mermitien Career

Contractor InUeb

Page ) of S
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New Hempehire Department of Hedth and Human Servlcea

New KmptNra Coeltien tor Ctiien* with DitatMBIe*. kte.

Contractor Name: d/bti Patent Mormation Center

Budget Request for Fatni|H»Jamt|r &ervlces

Budget Peilod; itdy 1. M2«Oune ». 202$

_ToUI_ProjiBm_C2^ Contractor Slwre J Match Funded by OHHS contract ttrara

1. Total SatarrAWioes

2. ErntdBvee BenetM

3. CoRsutaras

«■ BaulpmeN:
ReniN
Repair and MaWenence
Pischeie/Oepreciatlen

S, 8n)p$es:

Lab
Phartnecy

Ofliee
S. Travel

8. Cterert EJerenaes
Telephone
Poataoe
Si^ecnpttera
AudM and Legal

_Boara_E]£et2^^
S. Sotlware
to. MarltetinBiCemmijicatlons
11. Stall Edueetton and TraWm
12. Si^eoftractsrAofeemeraa
13. Other (wdiledeuiitt inanrtMoni):
Lendino UOtarv
Stipenda 8 Meetlno Ememee
Ctaural and UnQUgOc Support
Indna As a Una 8em 20.708.00

bHtbeci As A Petccm of Dlrecl

RFA-2022-OLTSS-CB^AMIL-0l-A02
. New HarrpsMre Cedtlon lor Citizens wttn PbattllUes, Inc.

dlbla Parart Mermttion Carter

ConUador Mliab,
{k

Page 1 ol 3
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ExhM Budetl-AmtndmvM t2

N«w Hampshira Dapartmant of Health and Human Sarvicaa

COMPLETE ONE euOGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

N«w HamptNn CeaWen tor CKteant wCh.DtublUt*. hK.
Contractor Name: dti/a Paranl bifennatlon Caniar

Budget Reauetl for. Pem»y4oJemt|r Servkex (B4)

Budget Period: July t. nze-Jurtc 20. »2S

1. TotelSetefY/waoee

2. Emcloyae Benellts

_To2l.Pro|j<am_Co*^ Contractor Sheta / Matcit Funded by 0HH8 contract xttem

). Conautaiax

«. Eodorrteta:

Reoeif end MeWeneno

Pwcneeo/Oeprocietlofl

5. 8»iop>ee:

Ub

PttermecY

Medicel

Ottlce

Occuoency

a. Cutett EAoetBoe

TelBphone

Poataoe
1,00

1.00
Stibeeriptlena

Audd end Legel

Board EraierBes

to. MerlietirWCommtrtcatlofB

11. Stelf Edueeiioft end Trainlro

12. SuOcontraets/Aoreemeras

13. Other (apeciticgetalb meBCatorvl:

Stipendx a Mewltyi Ejcenaae

CtatPil and UnoUatle Siaeort

Indlrecl As a Una Hem

78,000.00 I
bxtiract As A Percent d Ofeact

RFA-20Z2-OLTSS-0e^AMII.-0t-A02
New HampsNre CeiHion for CUzera wloi ObaUWes. Inc.

d/b/a Parart Wermetlen Cener

Coitraetor Iniiah

[K

Page 2 of 3
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ExhM C-4 Budgtt - AntixfeiMnl t2

N«w Kampshir* Department of Health and Human Services

N«w KamptNn CeaWon for ddzatt* wth OsaMKies. tic.

Contractor Nwim; d/b/< ParatH titormation Cantar

Sudgat Raquaatlor Fvntf t^PamiySatvlcaa (CCDFWMO)

Budget Parted: Jidy l. tOZas/una se, ZOZS

Total Program Ceat Contnetor SMra / Match Fiaidad by DHH8 contiact ahata

^_^oial_Safcf3rAJ22^^ S3,S40.00 M.$40.00
2. EmptovaaBanatlta 10.250.00 10.250.00
I. Coftsieanu

4. Eotipmera:

Repair and Malntenanca

PtfchasarPepracialleri

Si_22£Ete2L
Educatienal

tjb

PhacmaCT

7. OeoioaneY

B. Current Effetaas

■Telaphcfla
Peataoe
SutweripOew

_Aid2.and_Leja^
tmvance
Beard Ewtnea

B. Software
10. MarlialinB/Cetnmiailcatlena 13fi.00l
11. atari Education and Trab^ig
12. SieeoraractVAoraemena
13. Other (apeoliceetaftrriarealorvl:
LerBlng Ubrarr
Stipends a Meelirw Ewnaea
Ci<ur»l and Lktotdstle Sigpoit
IndVeet As a Line Hem

TOTAL

kMlbact Ai A Parcara at Diract

RFA-2022-OLTSS-0e-FAMIL;O1.AO2
New HsngsNre CotfUon for Cittzsns with OisabUUes. Inc.
dftVa Parart Mormatlon Caner

Cortractor Iniliab

Page 3 of 3 S/W/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Sc'anlan, Secrctar>' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

FOR CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 07. 1975. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar\' of State'sofTice have been,

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63839

Certificate Number: 0006211262

lb

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20th day of April A.D. 2023".

David M. Scanlan

Secretarj' of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar}' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that PARENT INFORMATION

CENTER is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 24, 2015. 1 further certity

that ail fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

ofTice is concerned. • •

Business ID: 728248

Certificate Number: 0006211265

I&.

te)

%

IN TESTIMONY.WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxcd

the Seal ofthe State of New Hampshire,-

this 20th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretar\'of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Jocelvn Charles ^ hereby certify that:

llama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NH Coalition of Citizens with Disabilities Inc. dba Parent
Information Center.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 21 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Michelle Lewis. Executive Director is duly authorized on behalf of NH Coalition of Citizens with
Disabilities dba Parent Information Center to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire
and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instrurpents, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may;in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this'vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.'This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to. bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: "5/18/23
Signature of Elected Officer
Name; Jocelyn Charles
Title: Co-Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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/KCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATH (MM/DOAYYY)

04/21/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the.certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street-

Manchester NH 03101

CONTACT Heather M. Sommers. API

(603)669-3218 . (603)645^331 .

ADDRFss- nianch.certs(®cros5agency.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COS/ERAGE NAIC •

iNSURERA: Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co . 16056

INSURED

NH Coalition For Citizens With Disabilities Inc..

DBA Parent Information Center

54 Old Suncook Rd '

Concord NH 03301-7317

INSURERS: ArhGuardInsCo 42390

INSURER c - Mount Vemon Fire Ins.,Co. 26522

INSURER D;

INSURER E;

INSURER F;

Tn5r
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHO\AN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POUCY EXPADDLSDBr POLICY EFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS44A0E OCCUR

GENXAGGRE^TE LIMIT applies PER:

X POLICY I I JECT I I LOGPOLICY

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO•

X

X

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY X

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LiAB

DEO X

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON^WNEO

AUTOS ONLY

X]OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

RETENTION S
10,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETORmARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEM8ER EXCLUDED?
(Mandttory In NH)
II y**. dMoib* undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bMow

E

Directors & Officers Liability

POUCY NUMBER

PHPK2494956

PHPK2494956

PHUB842934

NHWC452485 (3a.) NH

ND02003251Q

IMMjQtVYYYYI

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

<MH/PD/YYYY)

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE

BAMASETOREf/TEB
PREMISES (E« dceurraocel

MEO EXP (Any ona paraon)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ac6danl>

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon)

BODILY INJURY (Par acddanl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddantl

EACH OCCURRENCE

PER -
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE - POUCY LIMIT

General Aggregate

Each Occurrence

Deductible

1,000.000

100.000

5,000

1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000,000

1.000,000

1,000.000'

1,000.000

500:000

500,000

500,000

1.000,000

1.000,000

500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddKional Ramarlca Schadula, may ba aRachad It mora apaca la raqulrad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

State of New Hampshire Department of Health

and Human Services •

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

•  1 • ■

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Parent Infdrmation^^FPRMATIC

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities dba Parent Information Center
Mission Statement

The Parent Information Center (PIC) is a statewide family organization that provides families and
youth, with a focus on children/youth with disabilities/special health care needs, and the providers

who serve them, with the knowledge and support they need to make informed decisions that
enhance each child's development and well-being. We achieve positive outcomes through our

partnerships with families, youth, educators, organizations, and others." •

Parent Information Center (603) 224-7005 * (800) 947-7005 www.picnh.org
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Parent Infx)Rmation

NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR CITIZENS

WITH DISABILITIES, INC. D/B/A

PARENT INFORMATION CENTER

Financial Statements and Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalitioh for Citizens , ' .
with Disabilities, inc. d/b/a
Parent Information Center

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens' with
Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center, which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staterrients pi^sej3t.fairly,-in-ali-matexialjespects, the
financial position of New Hampshire Coalition foi^itizen^ith'Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a Parent
Information Center as of June 30, 2022, and the'changes''in its net assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accb'untingyp'nnciples generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibiiities under.those standards are further described in the
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit o'f the,Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a
Parent Information Center and to meet our^other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relatingko our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.-

■  1 ■ ■ i \ •Responsibilities of Managementjor the Financial Statements '
Management is responsible for tl^e pre|3aration and fair presentation of the financial statements j ;
in accordance with accounting principles^generally accepted in the United States of America, and y /
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation /
and fair presentation of financial statements thaj: are free from material misstatement, whether / '/
due to fraud or error. \ \ ^ ' '

il
I <

\

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts •

Greenfield, Massachusetts
Ellsworth. Maine 800.282.2440 l.melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate, whether there.are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New

Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center's ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued.

Auditorfs Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement's
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and, therefore, Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may. involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial

likelihood that, individually .or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and^maintaj.n-^professional skepticism throughout .the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks/Sf material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and''5esign and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosureyn they^inancial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate .'in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

i f '*
expressing an opinion on the'effectiveness of Ne\w Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with
Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed. '

I  ■ "A '
Evaluate the appropriateness bf-accounting policies used and the reasonableness of j
significant accounting estimates ma'de by management, as well as evaluate the overall J
preseritation of the financial statements. .A ;

\  \
Conclude whether, in bur^judgrnent, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about.New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with-
Disabilities, Inc.,d/b/a Parent^lnfojmation Center's ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of tim^ \ y'

800.282.2440 1 melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities, Inc. d/b/a
Parent Information Center's fiscal year 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated February 22,
2022. In our opinion', the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived. . .

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Program Services is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accpunting.and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. T^l^information haslbeen^s^j^jected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the^financial'-statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling ̂ eh information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to'prepare^fhe financial statements or tq the financial
statements themselves, and other additionaj^procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United Stat« of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole-.

Merrimack, New Hampshire

March 20,.2023

j4-

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com

?i
■/;
//
/ . .7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR CITiZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION CENTER

Statement of Fjnancial Position

June 30, 2022

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2021)

2022

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets -

Property and Equipment, Net

Total Assets

Without

Donor

Restrictions

311,103

175,868

31,649

7,724

526,344

14,468

S  540,812 S

With

Donor

Restrictions

12,305

12,305

12,305

2022

Total

323,408

175,868

.31,649

7,724

538,649

14,468

553,117

2021

total

267,457

194,324

71,133

13,334

546,248

17,047

563,295

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities;

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Contractliabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

•  Board-designated • Family Voices

With donor restrictions:

Time and purpose restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$  41,075 $

.40,233

81,308

304,744

154,760

12,305

459,504 12,305

S  540,812 5 12,305

$  41,075 , S
40,233

81,308

304,744

154,760

12,305

35,284

37,672

38,961

111,917

288,128

153,630

9,620

471,809 451,378

$  553,117 $ 563,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR QTIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION aNTER

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals,for the year ended June 30, 2021)

2022

Without With

Donor Donor 2022 2021

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

Support and Revenue

Support:

Government grants $ , . 849,906 ■ $ S  849,906 . $  787,185

Contributions 8,888 4,000 12,888 54,995

In-kind contributions (office space) 3,251 -
3,251 3,251

Revenue:

Progra m service fees, 212,959 -
212,959. 235,842

Conferences and workshops 66,426 -
66,426 15,106

Interest income 110 ■  -
110 .  18

Miscellaneous 1,200 -
1,200 601

Net Assets Released From Restrictions . 1,315 (1,315) - -

Total Support and Revenue 1,144,055 , 2,685 1,146,740 1,096,998-

Expenses

Program services 949,255 -
949,255 868,795

General and administration' 176,083 -
176,083 153,158

Fundraising 971 971 4,477

Total Expenses 1,126,309 . 1,126,309 1,026,430

Change in Net Assets 17,746 2,685 20,431 70,568

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 441,758 9,620 451,378 380,810

Net Assets, End of Year S  459,504 $  12,305 $  471,809 S  451,378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5  '
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR QTIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION aNTER

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2021)

2022

Program General and 2022 2021

Services Administration Fundraisine Total Total

Personnel expense;

Salary and wages S  595,127 S  81,277 S  792' $ 677,196 S  620,903

Benefits 45,602 5,460 72 51,134 , 48,151

Payroll taxes 45,991 6,998 57 53,046 49,120

Professional services - 21,411 - 21,411 18,468

Contracted services 129,960 -■ - 129,960 143,531

Office 4,889 ■  3,531 . - 8,420 6,848

Information technology 11,754 10,480 - 22,234 21,867

Occupancy 16,744 34,630 -
51,374 52,596

Travel 1,514 83 1,597 61

Conferences and seminars . 14,217 - - 14,217 461

Depreciation 12,329 - -
12,329 12,427

Insurance - 4,927 ••
4;927 5,180

Other expenses 32,470 1,277 -
33,747 .  , 21,457

Program expenses 7,215 • -
7,215 7,013

Workshop expenses 24,412 50 24,462 3,971

Printing,and reproduction 5,954 659 ;  - 6,613- 4,456

Equipment, repairs, and rtiaintenance 2 5,350
-

5,352 . 6,291

Training 1,075 - - 1,075 3,629

Total Expenses By Function $  949,255 S  176,083 S  971 . S 1,126,309 S  1,026,430

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION CENTER

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

{with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2021)

2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Contract liabilities

Refundable advance

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of property and equiprnent

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

20,431

12,329

18,456

39,484

,  5,610.

5,791

2,561

(38,961)

65,701

(9,750)

(9.750)

55,951

267,457

$  323,408

2021

$  70,568

12,427

(68,836)

(35,269)

1,527

15,699

720

(9,269)

(3,571)

(16,004)

(2,981)

(2,981)

(18,985)

286,442

$ 267,457

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these)financial statements.

7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR CITIZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

1. Organization

New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities,. Inc. d/b/a Parent Information
Center (the Organization) was Incorporated in 1975 for the purpose of creating a unified
body of citizens, which would promote the general welfare for all'citizens with disabilities.
The Organization impacts lives through the following major program service areas:

New Hampshire Family Voices (FV)

This project is funded primarily through the State of New Hampshire,. Department of
Health and Human Services Bureau of Special Medical Services, to provide assistance to

families and professionals through direct contact (telephone, e-mail, and in person),
publication development and dissemination, workshops, website, and trainings.

Parent Training and information Center (PTI)
This project is funded by the United States Department of Education, Office of Special
Education Programs, to provide information, referral, training, and support to parents of
children with disabilities.

ISoclal

This project is funded through the State of New Hampshire, Department of Education,
Bureau of Special Education to support New Hampshire's Pyramid Model implemen
tation, scale-up and sustai.nability efforts with the goal of improving social-emotional

.  outcpmes for young children. The program .builds capacity to implement process coaching

of local iSocial leadership teams, including embedding family engagement strategies
vvithin the selected communities and sites.

Other Programs

Race 2K . • ■

This project is funded through the State of New Hampshire, Department of Education,
Bureau of Special Education to provide information, support, and technical assistance to
school districts and others, including families, to improve outcomes for preschool children
with disabilities and their families.

Family to Family (F2F)

This project Is funded by the United States Department of Education Health Resources
and Services Administration (HRSA) to provide information, education, training, outreach,

and peer support to families of children and youth with special healthcare needs and the
professionals who serve them.
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Medical Home Initiative

This project is funded through the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Hurhan Services, Bureau of Special Medical Services to support primary care practices in

the development of family advisory councils. Ne\w Hampshire Family Voices staff work
closely with a practice to develop and launch their council, providing guidance in the
creation of policies for the councils, conducting outreach, and hew member orientation.

Prevention Makes Cents (PMC)

This program is funded by a variety of contracts to provide school-based child assault
prevention programs for preschool and elementary-aged children as well as multi-week
parenting programs and topic-related, workshops for parents and professionals.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and
presenting'the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the. Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America (GAAP).

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2020-07, Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In fiscal ,year 2022,. the Organization retrospectively adopted Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by
Not-for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The new guidance requires
nonprofit entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the
Statement of Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. The
standard also increases the disclosure requirements around contributed nonfinancial
-assets, including disaggregating by category the types of contributed nonfinancial assets
a nonprofit entity has received. Adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact
on the financial statements, with the exception of increased disclosure.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such Information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP.

Accordingly, such information should be read In conjunction with the audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized inforrnation
was derived.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or
less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term' purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a

right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable
contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the
performance of certain requirements have been met or performed. The allowance for
uncollectible grants receivable is based on historical experience and a review of
subsequent collections. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterestrbearing amounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectable receivables is based on historical
experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent-
collections. Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectable. Management has

determined that no allowance is necessary.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased,-and at
fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-

line method'over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 10 years, or in

the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful
life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost

and related accumulated depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is

included in the Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not

improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable

from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition.

When considered impaired, an.impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset Impairment in fiscal year

2022 or 2021.

Net Assets

Net.assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
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grantor) imposed restrictions. The Board has designated from net assets without
restrictions, net assets for New Hampshire Family Voices.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed

restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time

or other purposes specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual
in nature, vyhere the'donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while

permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets in accordance
with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations. Donor-imposed restrictions
are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when

the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The
Organization recognizes' revenue from contributions and grants that were initially
conditional, which became unconditional with restrictions during the reporting period,

and for which those restrictions were met during the reporting period, as net assets

. without donor restrictions.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue

when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or

grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are
reported as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position;

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional

promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises
to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

Revenue from program services are recognized when the performance obligation of
providing the services are met. The performance obligation of training support and
coaching, activity planning, and student support. Is simultaneously received and
consumed by the participants; therefore, the revenue is recognized when the service
occurs. Upon receipt of a prepayment from a participant, the Organization recognizes a

contract liability in the amount of the prepayment for its performance obligation to

transfer services in the future.

Revenue from conferences and workshops is recognized when the performance

obligation of providing the services is met. The performance obligation of delivering'
conferences and workshops is simultaneously received and consumed by the registrants;

therefore, the revenue is recognized when the conference or workshop occurs. Upon

receipt of a prepayment from a registrant, the Organization recognizes a contract liability

11
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in the amount of the prepayment for its performance obligation to provide the
conference or workshop in the future.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration,
and-fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not
reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition

criteria prescribed by GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if (a)
the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have been

purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by
individuals possessing those skills. Donated professional services are recorded at the
respective fair values of the services received. Contributed goods are recorded at fair
value at the date of donation and as an expense.when placed in service or distributed.

Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense at the estimated
fair value of similar space for- rent under similar conditions. If the use of the space is
promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is reported as a
contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift, and the expense
is reported over the term of use.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Functional Expenses

presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Certain categories of
expense are attributable to more than one program or supporting function. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited
on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Personnel expenses, including salaries
and wages, employee benefits, and payroll taxes, are allocated based on actual time and
effort. Occupancy expenses are allocated based on the amount of square footage utilized
by each function in the office building. Printing and reproduction costs are directly
charged if identifiable to a specific function or allocated based on the number of copies
made or postage used each month. Information technology costs are directly charged if
identifiable with a specific function or allocated based on the amounts that are included
in each grant-approved budget.

Income Taxes

The Organization has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt
from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section SOl(a) as an

organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution
deductions, and has been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization is

annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization.is subject to income tax on net Income that is
derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.

12
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Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed
to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits. To date, no
losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with
receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because
substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies
supportive of the Organization's mission.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial staternents. Fair
value is the.price that would.be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the rneasurement
date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable of estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair
value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect
the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability based, on the best information available. A three-tier
hierarchy categorizes inputs as follows:

•  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that are accessible at the measurement date.

• .• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
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the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the
significance of a particular Input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into
account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability
within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and

does nofnecessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile
of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2016-02,
Leases. The ASU requires all leases with lease terms more than 12''months to be
capitalized as a right of use asset and lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position
at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance leases.or

operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense recognition
in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the Organization for the year

ending June 30, 2023. The Orgahization is currently In the process of evaluating the
impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements

3. Liquidrty and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without , donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the Statement of Financial Position dat.e,
were comprised of the following at June 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year-end:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 323,408 S 267,457

Grants receivable 175,868 194,324

Accounts receivable 31,649 71,133

Total financial assets 530,925 532,914

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Board-designated net assets for Family Voices not likely

to be expended in less than one year' (154,760) (153,630)

Net assets with donor restrictions - purpose restrictions

not expected to be met in less than one year • (12,305) (9,620)

Financial assets available within one year ' 363,860 369,664

Additional liquidity resources;

Bank line of credit 50,000 - 50,000

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year ■ $ 413,860 S 419,664
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The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and

other contractual commitments; while also striving to maximize the investment of its

available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over

the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates

collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-
restricted" resources.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment was comprised of the folloyving at June 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 111,440 $ 101,690

Leasehold improvements 872 872

Subtotal 112,312 102,562

Less accumulated depreciation (97,844) (85,515)

Total $ 14,468 $, 17,047

Depreciation expense totaled $12,329 and $12,427, for the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $50,000 revolving line of credit available, secured by all assets.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at a rate based on the Wall Street Journal Prime

Rate plus 1.75%, adjusted daily. Interest only payments are required monthly with the

principal payable on demand. The line was not utilized in fiscal years 2022 and 2021. At

June 30, 2022 and 2021, the entire amount was available.

6. Net Assets

Board-Designated Net Assets

■  Net assets without donor restrictions include board-designated net assets relating to the

funds held on behalf of New Hampshire Family Voices as part of the Organization's fiscal
sponsorship agreement (see Note 12). Board-designated net assets at June 30, 2022 and

2021 totaled $154,760 and $153,630, respectively.
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Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrlctions were restricted for the following purposes at June 30,

2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Support children with physical and cognitive disabilities $ 9,000 $ 5,000

PMC - Prevention Makes Cents . 3,305 3,305

Other - 1,315

Total . ■ $ 12,305 $ 9,620

Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted

purpose of by'occurrence pf the passage of time and totaled $1,315 and $712) for the
years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

7. Grants

The Organization has been awarded cost-reimbursable grants of $165,972 that have not
been recognized at June 30, 2022 because qualifying expenditures have not yet been

incurred.

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's" Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. This

review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or

reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect

.  the financial position of the Organization.

8. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

The Organization received contributed nonfinancial assets in the amount of $3,251 and
$3,251 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These contributed
nonfinancial assets related to building usage and were utilized for the Family Voices

program. The building usage was valued at the estimated fair value based on the

estimated basis of costs both direct and indirect related to the facilities. There were no

associated donor restrictions.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of
' the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers all employees of the Organization. Employees

may make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal
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Revenue Code. The Organization is not required to rhake matching employer
contributions. The Organization did not make any employer contributions to the plan for

the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

10. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under .the terms of a noncancelable lease agreement

that expires in August 2022. In May 2022, the Organization extended the lease for three

years and has the option to extend the lease for an additional three-year term. Rent

expense under this agreement, which is included in occupancy costs in the Statement pf

Functional Expenses, totaled $39,600 and $38,100 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments on the above lease are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount

2023 $ 39,600

2024 . 40,200

2025 41,400

.2026 6,900 .

Total $ .128,100

11. Concentrations of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources,

-  the loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. In fiscal

years 2022 and 2021 funding from government entities was as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of

Revenues for Receivables at

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year June 30, June 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021

United States Department of Education 35% . 36% 20% 11%

State of New Hampshire 21% 20% 55% 52%

University of New Harnpshire 13% 16% 11% 23%

United States Department of Health and Human Services 8% 14% 8% 9%

12. Fiscal Sponsorships

The Organization has entered into two agreements to assume administrative and financial

responsibilities of New Hampshire Family Voices (NHFV) and Prevention Makes Cents
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(PMC). NHFV provides free, confidential services to families and jDrofessionals caring for

children with chronic conditions and/or disabilities. PMC provides school-based child
assault prevention prograrhs for preschool and elementary-aged children, as well as

multi-week parenting programs and topic-related workshops for parents and profession

als. The activity of NHFV and PMC has been included in the Organization's financial

statements.

13. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 20, 2023, which Is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION FOR CniZENS WITH DISABILITIES, INC.

D/B/A PARENT INFORMATION CENTER

Supplementary Information

Schedule of Program Services

For the Year Ended June 30. 2022

FV Ell . (Social Other Total '

Support and Revenue

Support:

Government grants ' S  357;274 s. 208,412 S 185,923 5 98,297 S 849,906

Contributions 8,168 ■  - - 2,505 10,673

In-kind contributions (office space) 3,251
- -

• 3,251

Revenue:

Program service fees 64,320 •
148,039 212,359

Conferences and w/orkshops •  - -

66,426 66,426

Interest income 56 - - 56

Total Support and Revenue 433,069 208,412 185,923 315,267 1,142,671

Expenses

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages 257,183 155,204 71,060 111,680 595,127

Benefits 33,574 2,598 4,917 4,513 . 45,602

Payroll taxes 19,951 10,398 5,364 10,278 .  4.5,991

Contracted services . 1,246 1,288 84,621 42,805 129,960

Office 3,603 46 371 869 4,889

Information technology 5,625 1,556 1,579 2,994 11,754

Occupancy 3,251 6,632 3,232 . 3,629 16,744

Travel 447 291 • 776 1,514

Conferences and seminars 255 •  - 13,962 14,217

Depreciation 11,416 • 596 317 12,329

Other expenses ■  31,461 30
-

979 32,470

Program expenses 7,215
- -

■ 7,215

Workshop expenses 1,415 120 -
22,877 24,412

Printing and reproduction 2,920 133 960 1,941 5;954

Equipment, repairs, and maintenance ■ • -
2 2

Training 1,075 - - 1,075

Total Direct Expenses 380,637 178,296 172,700 h7,622 949,255

Indirect Expenses 49,369 29,297 13,597 7,585 , 99,848

Total Expenses 430,006 207,593 186,297 225,207 1,049,103

Net Pr^ram Income . S  ' 3,063 $ 819 $ (374) S 90,060 . S 93,568

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Parent Information Center

Board of Directors May 2023

The board serves without compensation.

Jocelyn Charles, CPA
Board Co-Chair

Family Representative
Member since 2014 •

Dana Hill

Board Co-Chair and Secretary

Farnily Representative
Member since 2014

Sandra E. Fay
Board Treasurer •

Accountant

Member since 2012

Brittany Walker
Family Representative
Member since 2022

Sreenivasu ddugu
Family Representative
Member since 2015

Michele Watson

NAMI NH Family Netvi^ork Coordinator and
Family Representative
Member since 2021

Tara MacDonald

Assistant Principal, Nashua School District and
Family Representative
Member since 2021

Misty Martinez-Bohannon.
Family Representative •
Member since 2021
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♦ TREASA (TERRY) OHLSON-MARTIN

EMPLOYMENT history"

1994- Present - Co-Director-NH Family Voices
Parent information Center, Concord, NH 03301

Through an office at the State of NH, Special Medical Service Bureau (SMSB), oversees the
Family to Family Health Information Center to support.families having children with special
health care needs, physical, developmental, mental health and educational needs. Makes
presentations and educates families and support groups regarding health care finance and related
resources. Assist families with children with special health care needs seeking assistance with
resources. Directs staff and oversees budgets from multiple funding sources.

1987 - 1994 Early Childhood Specialist
Parent Information Center, Concord NH 03301

Responsible for identification and collection of resources pertaining to early childhood issues.
Coordinator of "expert team", arrangements for regional needs assessment meeting, negotiation
of technical assistance agreements with clients, provision of technical assistance, coordination
with Technical Assistance to Parent Projects, Parent Information Center and other agencies
serving preschool children with disabilities and provision of information to individuals regarding
Public Law 99-457.

1987 - 1994 Northeast Regional Coordinator (CAPP Project)
Parent Information Center, Concord NH 03301

.Provide technical assistance to Parent Training and Information programs and National Resource
Parents served by the Northeast Regional Office. Respond to needs of families within the
medical system. Reinforce the needs of families in the medial system with professionals. Work
within the health care system to make funding accessible to families.

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS:

BS, Human Services, Springfield College, Springfield, MA 01109-3797
Parent to Parent, USA

Educational Advocate, Teaching Organizational & Coping Skills, (Parent Information Center)
Telehealth Academy (Family Voices)
Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening & Support (Family Support NH)

PUBLICATIONS:

FCESS Hearing and Vision Ser\'ices Report, T. Ohison-Martin, Editor, US.DOE, OSEP,
Part C of the Idea, NH Bureau of Developmental Service, Special Medical Services, 2017
• Case Management Sourcebook, T. Ohlson-Editor, National Early Childhood Technical
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Assistance System, Chapel Hill, NC 1990
• Ensuring Access: Family Centered Health Care Financing Systems for Children with

Special Health Needs, New England Serve Regional Task Force on Health Care
Financing, published by New England Ser\'e, 101 Tremont Street, Boston, MA 1992

• Early Childhood Bulletin: Primer for New ICC Parents, author, published by
Federation for Children with Special Needs, 1135 Tremont Street, Suite 420, Boston
MA 02120-2140, 1992

• Paying the Bills, co-author, published by NE Serve, 101 Tremont Street, Boston, MA
02108, 1992

• HlV/AlDS Education It isn't Just for Health Class, co-author. Parent Information
Center, PO Box 1422, Concord, NH 03302

AWARDS:

Public Citizen of the Year, 2008, NH Pediatric Society
NH Citizen Action Leadership Award, 1996
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Sylvia Pelletierv
r

Summary

An organized, detail-oriented and'

visionary thinker with leadership skills

. and 20+ years of experience working to

improve systems. Possesses a passion-,

to improve systems of care for both.the

families served and the professionals

working.within'them. •

Has extensive personal experience with

special health care needs, particularly

epilepsy and pediatric cancer.

Skills

Family Engagement

Group Facilitation & Training

Quality Assurance & Measure Design

Education

Rivier University - B.A. Individualized

Studies; concentration Special

Education & Elementaiy Education

Certification Trainings

HOBSCOTCH.Memory Coach

{Dartmouth-Hitchcock}

Telehealth Academy

(lyiCH LEND Hawaii - Family Voices)

Standards .of Quality for Family

Strengthening & Support

(Family Support NH).

Educational Advocate Training

(Parent Information Center)

Pediatric Cancer Advocacy Training

(The Children's Cause)

Employment History

1999-present NH Family Voices Concord, NH

• Associate Director-

Responsibilities: Staff training and supervision; Salesforce utilization
oversight and reporting; grant proposals

• Project Director-Youth Health Care Transition Services Project

Responsibilities: quality assurance & measure design, patient & family
engagement, practice & community based technical assistance, cross-

systems training, materials development, reporting

Previous

• Project Director - Medical Horhe Project

Responsibilities: quality assurance & measure design, patient & family
engagement, practice & community based-technical assistance,

materials development, training, reporting

• Project Coordinator - Epilepsy Improvement Project

Responsibilities: quality improvement measure design, data collection,
reporting, team facilitation (practice sites), parent & youth partner
mentor. Learning Collaborative participation, training for community

based providers, reporting

• Consumer Advocate - Partners in Chronic Care & Integrated Services

Grants

Responsibilities: Represent & support family voice

• Outreach Coordinator.

Responsibilities: provide information, referral & support to families and
the professionals who serve them

Current Committees & Collaborations

• NH Pediatric Improvement Project Steering Committee

• Child Fatality Review Committee

• Sudden Death in Youth Committee

• Children for Youths with Chronic Conditions Council

Community Engagement & Leadership Activities

Childhood Cancer Lifeline - Founding Member; Board of Directors,

President

Awards

Public Citizen of the Year - NH Pediatric Society

Champion for Children - Council for Youths with Chronic Conditions -

Exemplary Contribution to System of Care for CYSHCN- NH Project

Access
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar)' ■ % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from '

this Contract

Terry Ohlson-Martin Director $44,070 45% $19,838,

Sylvia Pelletler Associate Director $48,750 48% $23,400 .
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

.  A i05 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-171-5034 1^520345 Eit 5034

Fax: 603-27I-5I66 TDD Acctas: 1-^735-2964
Naacy L. ReOifts www.dhhs.ab.{OV
lotrrim Dlretlof

January 20, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrhent of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to amend an existing contract wth New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with
Disabilities Inc, d/b/a/ Parent Information Center (VC# 177245), Concord, New Hampshire, to
Increase support to Family to Family Sen/ices by coordinating Watch Me Grow activities and
Implementation of Earty Childhood Comprehensive Systems (ECCS) B-8 Advisory support
systems by Increasing the price limitation by $150,000 from $540,000.to $690,000 with no change
to the contract completion date of June 30.2023. effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 16.2021, Item #29.
Funds are available in the following account for Stale Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with

the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
slate'fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to ensure support for Watch Me Grow activities. In
cooperation with the Department, Steering Committee memk>ers and stakeholders of the State's
developmental screening system. The Contractor will also assess strategies to engage early
childhood families' access to health care and parenting support programs by providing , support
through focus groups, trainings and input on the Department's needs and gap analysis of the
Early Childhood Comprehensive System.

Watch Me Grow Is New Hampshire's developmental screening, referral and inforrriation
system for families with children aged, birth to six years. The Contractor vrill meet with the Watch
Me Grow Steering Committee and stakeholders on a regular basis to collect, analyze, and report
on data to evaluate the effectiveness of the Watch Me Grow system.

The Contractor will leverage Its role as the facilitator of the birth through age eight (8)
advisory to support the Early Childhood Comprehensive System Initiative, provide communication
to families and advise the system on program delivery. The Contractor will conduct focus groups
to gather family input as it relates to referral systems and areas of concern that support successful
family engagement. The Contractor will also identify barriers to accessing supports for families,
as Identified by families.

The Department of Health and Human Sirvicet'Miuion ielejioih communiiiet and families
in preui^ng opportunUin for eitixene to achieve health and independence. ■■
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His Excellency,- Governor Christopher T. Suminu
end (he Honorable CoundJ

Pe9e2of2

Approximately 110,561 children from birth to age 6 years and their families will be
impacted annually..

The Department will monitor contracted services by collecting key data and metrics, which
includes client-level demographic, performance, and service data as wejl as client satisfaction.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Govemor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, the Watch Me Grow activities,
statewide, may not be coordinated In a manner that ensures families receive comprehensive
continuity of services without duplication of services. Additionalty. without the additional support
for the Early Childhood Comprehensive System, children and their families statewide may not
have their voices taken Into consideration.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number Source of Funds: #93.994 .FAIN
#60440148. Assistance Listing Number Source of Funds: #93.687 FAIN 2001NHSOSR.

. Assistance Listing Number Source of Funds: #93.575 FAIN 2101NHCCDF, Assistance Listing
Number Source of Funds: #93.575 FAIN 2106NHCDC6, and Assistance Listing Number Source
of Funds; #93.391 FAIN NH750T000031.

Respectfully submitted,

LoriV^. Shibinette
Cornmissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-093-930010-61910000 HHS; DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

26% Federal Funds, 76% General Funds, 0% Other Funds Title V Matomal Child Health Block Grant

Vendor#177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class f Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount.

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500565 Grants for Pub AssI and Relief 93001000 S180.000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pc^ Asst arid Relief 93001000 $180,000.00 $0.00 $180,000.00

Sub Total $360,000.00 $0.00 $360,000.00

05-95-093-930010-78580000 HHS; DLTSSOEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds. 0% Other Funds Children and Families Social Services Block Grant

Vendor 0177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500565 Grants for Pub Assl and Relief 93001000 SI 5.000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Assl and Relief 93001000 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Sub Total $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

05-95-042-421110-29780000 HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD DEVELOPMENT. CHILD CARE DEVLP-QUALITY ASSURE
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funda, 0% Other Funds Child Care Development Block Grant

Vendor#177245

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 . Contracts for Proflram Services 42117708 $75,000.00 SO.OO ■ $75,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Procram Services 42117708 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00

Sub Total $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

05-95-042-421110-24290000 HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD DEVELOPMENT, ARPA CHILD CARE CCDF
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds Child Care Development Block Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabililies Vendor#177245

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class TiUe Job Number Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117773 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2023 ' 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117773 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

06-95-090-801010-67710000 HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds COVIO-19 Disparity Grant

NH Coalition for Citizens with Disabililies Vendor#l77245

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tille Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90577170 $0.00 $25,000.00 • $25,000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90577170 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $50,000.00 ■$50,000.00

Overall Totall $540.000.00| $150.000.00| $690.000.00

Governor and Council letter Attachment
Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Seh/lces

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Family-to-Famlly Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire
Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Inc, d/b/a/ Parent Information Center ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 16, 2021, (Item #29), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and.
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17 Amendment, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$690,000.

2. Modify Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement provisions, Section 1.2, to read:

1.2.- Paragraph 12,'Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the Contractor and
the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with those
conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreernents with all subcontractors,
specifying the work to be performed and including a Business Associate Agreement
in accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, if
applicable. Written agreements shall specify how corrective action, shall be
managed. The Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an
ongoing basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually
provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement
and notify the Slate of any Inadequate subcontractor performance.

.  3. Modify Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreerhent Provisions, by adding Section 1.3, to read:

1.3. Paragraph 10, Data/Access/Confidentiality/Preservation, is amended by adding the
following subparagraphs as follows:

10.4 In performing its obligations under this Agreement, Contractor may gain access to
Confidential Irl'formation of the State. Confidential Information Is defined in the
Department of Health and Human Services' Information Security Requirements
Exhibit.

10.5 Subject to applicable federal or State laws and'regulaliphs, Confidential Information
shall not include information which:

a. Shall have otherwise become publicly available other than as a result of
disclosure by the receiving Party in breach hereof;

b. Was disclosed to the receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a source
other than the disclosing Party, which the receiving Party believes is not prohibited

. from disclosing such information as a result of an obligation in favor of the
disclosing Party; or

c. Is disclosed with the written consent of the disclosing Party's Privacy Officer or
designee.

OS

RFA-2022-DLTSS-b6:FAMIL-01-A01. New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Inc. /Vt^
d/b/a Parent Information Center Contractor Initials

^  1/26/2022
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10.6 Contractor Confidential Information. Contractor shall clearly Identify in writing all
Information It claims to be confidential or proprietary upon providing such Inforrriation
to the State. For the purposes of complying with Its legal obligations, the State Is
under no obligation to accept the Contractor's designation of material as
confidential. Contractor acknowledges that the State is subject to State and federal
laws governing disclosure of information including, but not limited to, RSA Chapter
91-A. In the event the State receives a request for the information identified by
Contractor as confidential or proprietary, the State shall notify Contractor and specify
Ihe date the Slate will be releasing the requested information. At the request of the
State, Contractor shall cooperate and assist the State with the collection and review

. of Contractor's information, at no additional expense to the State. Any effort to
prohibit or enjoin the release of the information shall be Contractor's sole
responsibility and at "Contractor's sole expense. If Coritractor fails to, obtain a court
order enjoining the disclosure, the State shall release the information on the date

.  specified, in the State's notice to Contractor, without any liability to the State.

10.7 This covenant in Paragraph 10 shall survive the termination of this Contract.

4. fVlodIfy Exhibit 8, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 8 - Amendment #1.
Scope of-Services, in order to add requirements for the Watch'Me Grow and Early Childhood
Comprehensive System, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C; Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1 .r. 13% Federal Funds from the Title V Maternal Child Health Block Grant, as awarded on
October 26,2020, by the Health Resources and Services Administration, CFDA 93.994,
FAIN 80440148.

1.2. 4% Federal Funds from the Children and Families Social'Services Block Grant, as
awarded on March 21, 2021, by the U.S. Department of. Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, CFDA 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR.

1.3. 7% Federal Funds from the COVID-19. Disparity Grant, as awarded on June 1, 2021.
from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control
(CDC) and Prevention. CFDA# 93.391. FAIN#NH750T000031.

1.4. 22% Federal Funds from the Child Care Development Block Grant, as awarded on July
14, 2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, CFDA 93.575, FAtN2101NHCCDF..

1.5. 15% Federal Funds from the Child Care Development Block Grant, as awarded on April
14, 2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families. CFDA 93.575, FAIN2106NHCDC6.

1.6. 39% General Funds.

6. Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a' cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-2 — Amendment #1 Budget;

■  7. Modify Exhibit C-1 Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-2 Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-2 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

RFA-2022-DLTSS-05-FAMIL-01-A01 New Hampshire Coalilion for CHizer^s with Disabilities Inc.

d/b/a Parent Information Center Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale \Arritten below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

OowiSlgiv^d by;

V. OD*0>4PFeC6&*B«,- • "

■- Name: Christine santaniello

1/26/2022

Date
Title: Associate Commissioner

1/26/2022

Date

New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Inc.
d/b/a Parent Information Center

y-^OocwSignbd by;

AlicluiL UwiS .
^  —

Name: Michelle Lewis
Title: executive Director

I

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Inc.
d/b/a Parent Information Center
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/27/2022 I
.7aii4tH4UUK .

D«cv9Iom4 by:

V—7487941

Date. Name: Robyn Guarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01-A01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities Inc.

d/b/a Parent Information Center

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide the following services.in this agreement:.

1.1.1. Family to Family Health Information Center services for children and
youth, from birth to 21 years of age, with or at risk for special health
care needs (CSHCN) and their families who are:

1.1.1.1. Economically disadvantaged;

.  . 1.1.1.1 Do not have health insurance:

1.1.1.3. Are transitioning from early intervention into the school
system (3 years of age):

1.1.1.4. Are medically fragile or have complex medical needs; or

1.1.1:5. Are transitioning from pediatric services to adult services
(teen/young adult).

1.1.2. Partners in Health Training seNices for individuals who provide family
support services to CSHCN and their families.

1.1.3. Birth through 8 (8-8) Early Child Care Education (ECCE) Advisory
Team Coordination to' ensure family leadership and family voice is
central to the State's early childhood system.

1.1.4. Watch'Me Grow system coordination activities in collaboration with the
Department, Steering Committee members and other stakeholders in
order to increase early childhood developmental screening.

1.1.5. Early Childhood Comprehensive Systems (EGGS) B-8 ECCE Advisory
(hereinafter referred to as'B-8 Advisory') support of Family Leadership
and Family Voice in Maternal and Child Health Title V pregnancy to
age three programs.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. The Contractor shall co-locate with the Department to ensure both the
■ Department and the Contractor have access to all rnaterials and resources
available relative to children with special health care needs and their families.
The Contractor shall have access to photocopiers and office workstations
and/or furniture for up to six (6) individuals. The Contractor shall:

.1.3.1. Utilize the Department's toll-free 800 telephone number to provide
assistance to families who call the Family-to-Family Health Information
Center and to conduct follow-up telephone calls to families to assess
their satisfaction with their experiences.

1.3.2. Provide all computer equipment necessary to.conduct servicesjyhis
agreement. f AU

RFA-2022-0LTSSO6-FAMIL-0t Now Hampshire Coalition for Citizens wilh Dlsabililtes ( ̂
Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center Contractor Initials

^ . 1/26/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Famlly Services

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

2. Family-To-Family Health Information Center

2.1. The Contractor shall maintain a statewide Family-To-Family Health Information
Center.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure Title V programs arid efforts for CSHCN are family-
centered and include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. - Offering constructive feedback regarding families' experiences with
the Department's .health ■ care service delivery system and
recommendations for improvement.

2.2.2. - Establishing and maintaining regular contact with other parent
advisory and support groups.

2.2.3. Identifying gaps in data needs and creating solutions for strengthening
family feedback.

2.2.4. Convening a minimum of one (1) forum of diverse family participants.
annually, to collect annotative feedback of their experiences with the
Department.

2.2.5. Conducting an annual satisfaction survey that includes key questions
to ascertain families' experiences and the impact of the service
delivery systems.

2.2.6. . Maintaining participation in the Council for Youth with Chronic
Conditions.

2.2.7. Maintaining linkages with community support groups, which include,
but are not limited to parent groups and hospital or practice-based
groups.

2.3. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with State agencies, local service
organizations, and other professional organizations, as agreed upon with the
Department, in order to: -

2.3.1. Ensure , that CSHCN and their unique needs are adequately
represented in system design, planning and service delivery across
the system of care in New Hampshire;

2.3.2. Provide information about the needs and strengths of families of
CSHCN;

2.3.3. Identify how the current configuration of the service system impacts
families;

2.3.4. Facilitate the coordination of services;

2.3.5. Improve the quality of services and effecting system change; and

2.3.6. Ensure family leadership and voice in ECCS initiatives.

2.4. The Contractor shall collect qualitative information about families' ne^d^nd
RFA-2022-OLTSS-O6-FAMIL-O1 Now Hampshire Coaltlion for Citizens wilh Disabililies [ ̂

inc. d/Wa Parent Information Center Coinractor tnlliais
1/26/2022

B.10 Page 2 of 22 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 12B884B7-FF77-4EA4-BAA4-D47ADB9F36F7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 13EB82O7^2C6-4920-9C24.74A86A5D4411

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Famlly Services

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

strengths through outreach to families of children and youth with the widest
range of disabilities and special health care needs.

2.5. , The Contractor shall ensure outreach to families of children with deafness
and/or blindness through appropriate organizations and agencies.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide outreach to families receiving early intervention
services and/or who have children ages 0 to 3 years.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure representation of families of children impa'cted by
genetic and newborn screening sen/ices.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide support to youth and families transitioning from
pediatric healthcare to the adult healthcare system. ■

2.9. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to Department staff regarding
consumer, family and/or young adult issues. ,

2.10. The Contractor shall participate in the review and development of Department
policies, procedures and proposed changes in services to ensure maintenance
of consumer participation in decision-making.

2.11. The Contractor shall assist in the evaluation of Department programs and
activities, and with recruiting additional parents to participate in the evaluation
of Department programs and activities, including the Title V fraternal and Child
Health Block Grant and the Title V Needs Assessment process.

2.12. The Contractor shall complete one (l).activity,annually that engages parents'
of CSHCN in order to iderilify both unmet and/or erherging needs and input,
relative to the Title V Block Grant. ,

2.13. The Contractor shall facilitate the involvement of youth who are 14 to 21 years
of age with special health care needs to improve health care transition supports
and resources.

2.14. The Contractor shall assist newly established chronic illness support groups in
their organizational development by. offering technical assistance and

■ ■ administrative support as a strategy to ensure needs of families are
communicated to the Department.

2.15. The Contractor shall assist the Department with developing, implementing, and
revising quality assurance activities and standards of care.

2.16. The Contractor shall assume primary responsibility for information and
educational materials and "offerings regarding state, ̂ local and national
resources of interest to families with CSHCN, including information on how to
access the resources. The Contractor shall conduct activities, which include
but are not limited to:

2.16.1. Working collabpratively with community parent organizations to
enhance training of the supportive parent model.

' HRFA-2022-DLTSS-0&-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire Coalillon lor Citizens wilh DIsabiUlies
Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center ' Contractor Inliials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT a - Amendment #1

2.16.2. Maintaining a database of parents who have completed training who
can be matched with newly diagnosed families.

2.16.3. Maintaining a database that contains and tracks diagnosis and age of
children in order to match to a specific condition that has been
requested.

2.16.4. Developing family support mechanisms.

2.16.5. Collecting data from parents who request parent-to-parent support and
related issues.

2.16.6. Providing emotional support to families raising children with special
health care needs.

2.16.7. Offering educational presentations to support groups,, family
organizations, and healthcare professionals, in relation to all.resources
and services available statewide and nationally.

2.16.6. Managing, updating and enhancing a Parent Lending Library including
CDC Learn the Signs Act Early materials and making
recommendations for purchases. .

2.16.9. Compiling, developing, revising and distributing health resource
directories.

2.16.10. Producing a quarterly parent newsletter.

2.16.11. Facilitating educational and social events, in collaboration with the
Department, which may include but are not limited to support groups,
workshops, seminars and conferences that;

2.16.11.1. Are designed for parent, youth, and professionals

2.16.11.2. Reflect current issues, changes in access to .cafe and best
practices.

2.16.12. Supporting'and assisting families with navigating and accessing state
services and support,including, but not limited to:

2.16.12.1. Family-Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS).

2.16.12.2. Health Families America (HFA) services.

2.16.12.3. Women, Infants and Children (WIG) services.

2.16.12.4. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP).

2.16.12.5. Medicaid enrollment.

2.16.12.6. Special Medical Services (SMS).

2.16.12.7. Partners in Health

HRFA*2022-DLTSS-06'FAM]L*0t New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with.Disabilities

Inc. d/b/a Parent Inlomiation Center Contractor Initials

B-1.0 Page 4 of 22



DocuSign Envelope ID; 12B884B7-FF77-4EA4-BAA4-D47ADB9F36F7

DocuSign Envelope 10:136B82D7-52C6-4920-9C24.74A86A5O4411

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

2.16.12.8. Area Agency services for individuals with developmental
disabilities /

2.16.12.9. Maintaining social media presence including but .not
limited to a website.

2.16.12.9.1. The Contractor shall agree that if performance
of services on' behalf of the Department involve
using social media or a website to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data,
the Vendor shall work with the Department's
Communications Bureau to ensure that any
website designed, created, or managed on
behalf of the Department meets all' of the
Department's and NH Department of
Information Technology's website and social
media requirements and policies.

2.16.12.9.2. The Contractor agrees protected health
information (PHI), personal information (PI), or
other confidential information solicited either by
social media or the website maintained, stored
or captured shall not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the . contract. The
solicitation or disclosure of PHI. PI, or other
confidential information shall be subject to the
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the

■  Business Associates Agreement Exhibit and all
applicable state rules and state and federal law.
Unless specifically required by the contracfand
unless clear notice is provided to users of the
website or social media, the Vendor agrees that
site visitation will not be tracked, disclosed or
used for website or social media arialytics or
marketing.

2.17. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures that include, but are not limited to;

2.17.1. Selecting and dismissing staff, volunteers and others.
>  *

2.17.2. Supervising and evaluating staff.

2.17.3., Delivering and coordinating services across the system of services for
CSHCN and their families.

2.17.4. Supporting students and/or interns interested in working with CSHCN.
OS

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01 New Hampshife Coalilion (of Citizens with Disabilities I 'W/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Fami|y-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

2.17.5., Verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee and/or intern
qualittcations.

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure the program and personnel policies and
procedures are accessible and available to all staff and the Department.

2.19. The Contractor shall collect and record all data unique to the Family-to-Family
Health Information Center using'a data system that complies with stale and
federal laws related to privacy^and security. The Contractor shall collect data
that includes, but Is not limited to:

2.19.1. All. six (6) performance measures and outcomes of the Maternal and
Child Health Bureau which include:

2.19.1.1. CSHCN and their families partner in decision-making at all
levels;

2.19.1.2. CSHCN receive coordinated, ongoing, comprehensive care
within a medical home;

2.19.1.3. All children be screened early and continuously for special
.  healthcare needs;

2.19.1.4. Families of CSHCN have access to adequate, private and/or
public insurance and financing to pay for services they need;

2.19.1.5. Community-based service systems are organized so
families can use them easily; and

2.19.1.6. CSHCN receive the sen/ices necessary to make a transition
to all, aspects of adult life, including health care, work and
independence.

2.19.2. New Hampshire specific issues related to public and private health
care financing systems, community services and family and/or youth
needs.

2.20. The Contractor shall convene bi-monthly staff meetings that include, but are
not limited to:

2.20.1. A review of all objectives to ensure they are being met.

2.20.2. A review of all work plans.-

2.20.3. A review of past and current scheduled activities.

3. Partners in Health (PIH) Training

3.1. The Contractor shall identify one (1) individual as the point of contact for PIH
Training activities.

3.2. The Contractor shall develop and implement a training plan, in consultation with
PIH staff and the Department, that includes, but is not limited to: ^

RFA-2022-DLTSS-0W^AMiL-01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens vnth Disabilities I
Inc. d/Wa Parent Inlomnalion Center Contractor initials ̂  —

B-1.0 Pe9e6of22 OaleJ^^^^^^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 12B88487-FF77-4EA4-BAA4.D47ADB9F36F7

OocuSign Envelope ID: 13EB82D7.52C6-4920.9C24.74A86A5D4411

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services
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3.2.1. Facilitating a minimum of ten (10) statewide training opportunities to-
Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators that include:

3.2.1.1. A rhlnimum of seven (7) training opportunities delivered in
person, or in a manner otherwise approved by the
Department in writing, including but not limited to Zoom;

3.2.1.2. Certificates of completion for each participant in attendance.

3.2.1.3. The ability for participants to evaluate trainings at the
completion of each training.

3.2.2. Providing an attendance list that identifies the names of all participants
to the Department for each training.

3.2.3. Ensuring training topics include, but are not limited to: - .

3.2.3.1. Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening and Support
Certification training for new Partners in Health Family
Support Coordinators and Lead Agency supervisors, hosted
by Family Support New Hampshire.

3.2.3.2. Motivational Interviewing.

3.2.3.3. Other trainings, as approved by the Department.

3.3. The Contractor shall sponsor a minimum of eight (8) Partners in .Health Family
Support Coordinators to attend conferences ensuring:

3.3.1. Five (5) Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators attend in-state
conferences, ensuring sponsorship includes:

3.3.1.1. Conference registration;

3.3.1.2. Vendor table registration, if applicable; and

3.3:1.3. Mileage reimbursement at the current federal rate.

3.3.2. Three (3) Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators attend the
annual Family Support .Conference, ensuring sponsorship includes:.

3.3.2.1. Hotel expenses;

3.3.2.2. Registration; and

•3.3.2.3. Travel to and from the Family Support Conference.

4. Birth through 8 (B-8) Early Child Care Education (ECCE) Advisors Team
Coordination

4.1. The Contractor shall provide a representative, who will be the Coordinator, to
the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team to provide administrative support that includes:

4.1.1. Convening B-8 ECCE Advisory Team meetings;
-03

RFA-2022-bLTSS-0S-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire Coalilion for Citiiens with Disabllilies
Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center Contractor Initials ^ ' •

i/26/2022
B-1.0 P89e7ol22 Date



•DocuSign Envelope ID: 12B884B7-FF77^EA4-BAA4-D47ADB9F36F7

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 13EB82D7^2CM920-9C24.74A88A504411

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Famlly-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B- Amendment #1

4.1.2. Co-leading the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team In partnership with the Chair
who Is identified by the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team;

4.1.3. Organizing and publicizing B-8 ECCE Advisory Team meetings in a
manner that supports maximum meeting participation;

4.1.4. Providing the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team members with information to
access Team meetings remotely;

4.1.5. Recording B-8 ECCE Advisory Team meeting notes;

4.1.6. Presenting B-8 ECCE Advisory Team meeting materials; and

4.1.7. Conducting other.dutles, as defined by the Charter.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator co-leads the B-8 ECCE Advisory
Team, which includes:

4.2.1. Ensuring families and communities have culturally responsive and
equitable opportunities in which to contribute their lived experiences
relative to the evolution of systems and services that will directly affect
their lives; , .

4.2.2. Promoting parent knowledge and choice through sustained family and
community engagement, support, resources, and feedback;

4.2.3. Utilizing the principles of Boundary Spanning Leadership; and

'  4.2.4. Promoting access to and builds commitment for quality early childhood
programs and services.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator assists the B-8 ECCE Advisory
Team, to develop, review, Implement, and refine a charter that:

■ 4.3.1. ■ Identifies the leadership and activities of the Team;

4.3.2. Requires membership to be at a minimum of 51% parents and/or
caregivers of children ages birth through eight (8) years;

4.3.3. Can advance to reflect the changing needs of communities and
families; and

*  4.3.4. Is reviewed by the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team on a quarterly basis arid,
with consensus of members and stakeholders, may be modified or
adjusted as needed.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator supports and facilitates the work
of the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team to Implement its Charter that includes, but Is
not limited to:

4.4.1. Strengthening NH's early childhood infrastructure In all environments;

-DS
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4.4.2. Building capacity of families, professional and non-professional
caregivers and educators, statewide, in order to meet the health and
educational needs of children;

4.4.3^ ;Ensuring an integrated and coordinated early childhood governance
structure across state government that is connected to local
comniunities by conducting ongoing needs assessments and
engaging in strategic planning;

4.4.4. Enhancing of the interoperability of. data systems within and'across
government agencies to inform and monitor program and service
access, equity, and quality;

4.4.5. Prompting parental knowledge and choice through sustained family
and community engagement, support, resources and feedback;

4.4.6. Coordinating with the other groups to ensure the work in the early care
and education systems includes input from local/regional fomms that
support parents, professional caregivers, educators, and community
members in order to ensure the sharing of best practices;

4.4.7. Expanding access; ensuring equity: and improving transitions across
the span of early childhood .supports, services, and educational
environments for children and their families; and

4.4.8. Participating in the dev'^elopment and implementation of an integrated
' and comprehensive plan for early childhood in New Hampshire.

■ 4.5. The Contractor shall facilitate engagement and communication between
members of the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team, the Council for Thriving Children,
and stakeholders in order to strengthen the early childhood infrastructure. ■

4.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator assists the B-8 ECCE Advisory
Team in; "

4.6.1. Maintaining and creating partnerships with agencies, statewide, to
increase the ability to coordinate services in diverse geographic areas;

4.6.2. Developing and furthering partnerships with key system of .care
community partners and early childhood care and education partners
including, but not limited to:

4.6.2.1.. Afterschool care programs.

4.6.2.2. Businesses.

4.6.2.3. Child care providers.

4.6.2.4. Child welfare services.

4.6.2.5. Developmental services and supports.

4.6.2.6. Early intervention programs.
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4.6.2.7. Family support services and programs.

4.6.2.8. WIC healthy foods/nutrition education

4.6.2.9. Funders.

4.6.2.10. Head Start.

4.6.2.11. Higher education.

4.6.2.12. Kindergarten through grade three (3) teacheris. .

4.6.2.13. Physical health and behavioral services.

4.6.2.14. Preschool special education teachers.

4.6.3. Fostering awareriess of the importance of early childhood amongst the
public and policy leaders;

4.6.4. Developing recommendations to Increase.the overall participation of
children in existing child care and early childhood education programs,
including outreach to uhderrepresented and special populations; and

4.6.5. Producing an arinual report vyilh details relative to the Team including,
but not limited to:

4.6.5.1. Outcorhes of assessmerjts, which may include Boundary
Spanning Leadership assessments.

4.6.5.2.. Accomplishments from the prior year. . '

4.6.5.3. Identification of community needs and gaps in services and
supports.

4.6.5.4. Priority setting based on Leadership,.lnv0Stment, Voice, and
Engagement goals.

5. Watch Me Grow (WMG) Coordination

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a representative, who is the Coordinator, to
convene a minimum of ten (10) monthly WMG Steering Committee meetings'
per year and one (1) annual Stakeholder meeting, in coordination with BFCS
staff, the Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator:

5.1.1. Organizes and publicizes meetings in a manner that supports
maximum meeting participation. '

5.1.2. Provides the Steering Committee members.and Stakeholders with,
information on how to access meetings remotely and/or attend
meetings in person.

5.1.3. Records and distributes WMG Steering Committee meeting and
Stakeholder meeting notes."
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5.1.4. Presents meeting materials to Steering Committee members and
Stakeholders.

5.1.5. Monitors participation of WMG Steering Committee members and
Stakeholders during their respective meetings.

5.1.6. Collects, analyzes, and reports on data collected in the monthly WMG
Steering Committee meetings and the annual Stakeholder meeting in
order to evaluate the effectiveness of the WMG system.

5.2. The Contractor shall review and evaluate information related to early childhood
developmental screening gathered from a variety of sources including, but not
limited to: '

5.2.1.' Ages & Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) Online as utilized by Watch Me
Grow partners.

5.2.2. The Department's ASQ database.

5.2.3. Family Centered Early Supports and Services.

5.2.4. Special Medical Services (SMS) programs.

5.2.5. Partners in Health (PIH).

5.2.6.. Nationally published data.

5.3. the Contractor shall make recommendations to the Department and the Watch
Me Grow Steering Committee related to quality assurance and continuous
quality improvement.

5.4.' The Contractor shall provide early childhood developmental screening
education and training to Watch Me Grow partners and other stakeholders.
The Contractor shall ensure education and training includes, but is not limited
to:

5.4.1. Child development. ^ .

5.4.2. ■ Early childhood developmental screening and surveillance.

5.4.3. Use of ASQ Online.

5.4.4. Training early childhood providers on how to communicate with
families regarding developmental screening.

5.4.5. Educating fartiilies on the importance of developmental milestones and
screenings and how to access screening and other resources.

6. Early Childhood Comprehensive Systems (EGGS) B-8 Advisory Support
6.1. The Contractor shall provide advisory support to ECCS programs that include

but not limited to. Family Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS),
Women, Infant and Children's Nutrition program (WIC) and Healthy Families
America (HFA) programs. p-"
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6.2. The Contractor shall provide advisory support that strengthens maternal and
early childhood health system and increases access to family-centered care for
children.prenatal to 3 years of age through care coordination and centralized .
intake and referral systems.

6.3. The Contractor shall leverage their role as the B-8 Advisory to support the
ECCS initiative, provide communication and advise on program delivery.

6.4. The Contractor shall maintain family membership in the B-8 Advisory that
consists oil diverse backgrounds and expertise which may include, but are not
limited to:

6.4.1. Families with children with special medical needs.

6.4.2. Families in rural areas.

6.4.3. Families of various racial and ethnic backgrounds.

6.4.4. Early Childhood Families prenatal to age three (3).

6.4.5. Families experiencing parental incarceration.

6.4.6. Kinship Families.

6.4.7. Families receiving services through Maternal and Child Health and
ECCS identified programs.

.  6.5. The Contractor shall review and utilize the Division of Public Health Equity
Toolkit to develop meetings, focus groups and surveys that address health
disparities and inequities.

6.6. The Contractor shall offer up to three (3) regional trainings, in collaboration with
the Department, on best practices relative to increasing family engagement,
statewide, in order to increase and ensure family leadership, capacity across
early childhood systems and organizations.

6.7. The Contractor shall conduct focus groups, of which both survey and outcomes
will be shared with the Department, consisting of underserved rural, racial and
ethnic populations to understand the impact of COVID-19 and the current
needs of families. The Contractor shall:

6.7.1. Gather family input as it relates to closed loop referral systems
including areas of concern and recommendations relative to
communication tips that can support centralized referral and intake
implementation and care coordination for successful family
engagement.

6.7.2. Make recommendations for mari<e^ing and communication to
families about access to needed services, health care access and
immunization and/or vaccination and referral follow through with the
identified ECCS programs.
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67.3. Identify services, programs and/or resources that were most helpful
and utilized during the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as needs that
were not met, which may include, but are not limited to:

6.7.3.1. Economic.

6.7.3.2. Food.

6.7.3.3. Referrals to substance use.

6.7.3.4. Referrals to mental health supports.

6.7.3.5. Health care.

6.7.3.6. Social connections.

6.7.4. Identify barriers to accessing supports including but not limited to
transportation, technology, accessing emergency supplies, '
including but not limited to:

6.7.'4.'1. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE).

6.7.4.2. Diapers.

6.7.4.3. Food.

6.7.5. Identify.concerns about COVID-19 and immunization and/or
vaccination for early childhood families including but not limited to
potential barriers to access. -'

6.8. The Contractor shall provide input on the needs and gap analysis conducted
as part of the ECCS initiative and make recommendations for improvements
and systems building activities.

6.9. The Contractor shall work with the Department to create a survey that gathers
family input on adverse.childhood experiences.

7. Staffing

7.1. The Contractor shall provide staff who have personal experience as a caregiver
forCSHCN.

7.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing in the event a position
becomes vacant and include the plan to ensure uninterrupted services.

7.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing, at least 1 week prior to a
new employee's start date, ensuring the notification includes:

7.3.1. The full name with the middle initial of the employee and the official
start date.

7.3.2. The work telephone number and email address of the hew
employee.

7.3.3. The employee's resume.
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7.3.4. The Contractor must recruit for and maintain a workforce that Is
culturally, linguistically, racially, and ethnically diverse.

7.4. Prior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor
shall, after obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or
persons for whom information is being sought:

7.4.1. Obtain at least two (2) references for the person.

7.4.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to
RSA161-F:49.

7.4.3. Submit the person's narne for review against the Division for
Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) state registry maintained
pursuant to RSA 170-G:8-c.

7.4.4. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has
no history of:

7.4.4.1. Felony conviction; or

7.4.4.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

7.4.4.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

7.4.4.2.2. Violence;

7.4.4.2.3. Explpitation;

"7.4.4.2.4. Child pornography;

7.4.4.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

7.4.4.2.6. Theft;

.7.4.4.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol; or

7.4.4.2.8. Any other conduct that represents evidence
of behavior that could endanger the well-
being of a consumer.

7.5. The Contractor shall provide the Department with an attestation within 15 days
of the Effective Date of Amendment#! that all Contractor workforce associated
with fulfilling the obligations of this Agreement are, based on NH DHHS
provided criteria herein and their job responsibility requirements, eligible to
participate in services associated with this Agreement.

7.6. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures that include, but are not limited to:

7.6.1. Selecting and dismissing staff, volunteers and others.

7.6.2. Delivering or coordinating services under the provider's direcWonfi'
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7.6.3. Supporting students/interns interested In working with CSHCN.

7.6.4. Verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee/intern qualifications.

7.6.5. Descriptions of how they are accessible and available to all agency
staff and BFCS.

8. Exhibits Incorporated

8.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

8.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreerhent in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

8.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Reporting Requirements

9.1. The Contractor shall submit annual reports, in the format designated by the
Department, which include, but are not limited to:

9.1.1. Outreach and encounter statistics.

9.1.2. Quality assurance activities.

9.1.3. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and
objectives for.each activity or service funded in quantitative terms,
including statistical measures for evaluating successful outcomes.

9.1.4. Overall progress toward program goals and supporting statistical
infornriation.

9.1.5. Program effectiveness.

9.1.6. Future plans and goals,

9.1.7. Additional information as requested by the Department at any time
during the contract period.

9.2. The Contractor shall submit supporting documentation related to the outreach
activities and efforts that address the National and State Performance

Measures selected in the Title V Block Grant annually, ho later than May 15th
of each year.

9.3. The Contractor shall submit a report on the focus groups and surveys
completed in a format designated by the Department.
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10. Performance Measures

.  10.1. The Contractor shall ensure 85% of respondents to the annual survey indicate
their ability to manage their child's health condition at home improved as a
result of education/guidance provided by. the Family-to-Family Health
Information Center.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure 85% of training participants who respond to post
training evaluations.rate training as excellent or very good.

10.3. The Contractor shall increase the number of individuals from WMG Partner
organizations, who are trained in the use of the Ages and Stages Questionnaire
and the ASQ Online Management System from a baseline of 29 to 60.

.10.4. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from the Contractor,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

10.5. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance measures, in the resulting contract. .Where
applicable, the Contractor must collect and share data with the Department in
a format specified by the Department.

10.6. The Contractor shall increase the number of diverse family leaders and
partnerships engaged in ECCS programs and leverage that diverse expertise
to provide program input and recommendations to improve early childhood.
systems so they address, health disparities and inequities and-COVID-19
impact either through meetings, surveys and or focus groups. This shall be
reported as follows:

10.6.1. Total partnerships: Count of all new, existing, and expanded
partnerships mobilized to address COVID-19 health disparities and
inequities. This number will serve as the denominator in the
proportion.

10.6.2. New partnerships mobilized: Count of new partnerships mobilized to
address COVID-19 health disparities and inequities. New

, partnerships include any organization that the recipierifhas not
worked with in the past in funded or unfunded capacities. This-
number will serve as the numerator of the proportion for new
partnerships mobilized.

10.6.3. Existing partnerships mobilized: Count of existing partnerships
mobilized to address COVID-19 health disparities and inequities.
Existing partnerships include organizations that recipients are
currently .working with or have worked with previously to address
COVID-19 health disparities and inequities. This number will serve as
the numerator of the proportion for existing partnerships mobilized.

10.6.4. Expanded partnerships mobilized: Count of expanded partnershif^
mobilized to address COVID-19 health disparities and inequitie^
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■Expanded partnerships include those that recipients are currently ..
working with or have worked with previously and will enhance
through increased membership, mission, or funding. This number will
serve as the numerator of the proportion for expanded partnerships
mobilized.

10.7. The Contractor shall provide a count of improvements to infrastructure across
partners or agency organizations including :
10.7.1. Number of family engagement trainings.
10.7.2. Number of convened multi sector groups, focus groups or advisory

groups

11. Completion of Services

11.1. Each service of Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and the
Trarisition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after the product,
resulting from the Service or contract has terminated, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term the Contractor notifies
the Department of an issue requiring additional time to complete said product.

11.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated, the Contractor will have 30
days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, including certificate of data
destruction. ■

12. Disagreement over Services Results

12.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the Transition
Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, by email, stating the reason
for the lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product or at any
time during the data-Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions
to be taken to resolve the disagreement or issue: If an agreement is not

.reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate actions in
accordance with this contract.

13.Contract End-of-Life Transition Services
<

13.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract the Parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and. if applicable, the Vendor
engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously performed by
the Contractor for this section the new vendor shall be known as "Recipient").
Contract end of life services shall be provided at no additional cost. Ninety (90)
days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise specified by the
Department, the Conti^actor shall begin working with the Department and if
applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.
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13.2. The Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
corinection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and its Affiliates to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of
any such Service froni the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

13.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store State Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of State Data
is complete.

13.4. The internal planning of the transition Services by the Contractor and its
Affiliates shall be provided to the Department and, if applicable the Recipient on
a timely manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed to be Services
for purposes of this Contract.

13.5. Should the data. Transition extend beyond the end of-the Contract,' the
Contractor and its affiliates agree Contract Information Security.Requireme'nts,
and if applicable, the Department's Business Associates Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.,

13.6. In the event where the-contractor has comingled Department Data and the
-destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will :jointly evaluate .regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction.

14. State Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

14.1. If the Contractor's workforce or its subcontractor's workforce is authorized by
the Department's Information Security' Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, iPad, cell phone) in the fulfilment of this Agreement they
shall: " ■ ,

14.1.2. Sign and abide by applicable Department and NH Department of
Information Technology (DOIT) use agreements, policies, standards,
procedures and/or guidelines;

14.1.3. Use the information solely for conducting official Department business;

14.1.4. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner inconsistent
with the approved policies, procedures, and/or agreement relating to

.system entry/access; /—o$

HRFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens vwlh Disabilities
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.14.1.5. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify,'reverse engineer, rent,
or sell softvyare licensed, developed, or being evaluated by the state. At
all times the Contractor must use utmost care to protect and keep such
software strictly confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the state. Only equipment or software owned,
licensed, or being evaluated by the state can be used by the contractor.
Non-standard software shall not be Installed on any equipment unjess
authorized by the Department's Information Security Office:

14.1.6. Agree that email and other electronic communication- messages
created, sent, and received on a state-Issued email system are the
property of the State of New Hampshire and to be used for business
purposes only. Email is defined as "internal email systems" or "state-
funded email systems." The Contractor understands arid agrees that
use of email shall follow Department and DOIT standard policies. When
utilizing the Department's email system the Contractor shall:

14.1.6.1. Include in the signature lines information identifying the contractor
as a non-state employee: and

14.1.6.2. Contain the. following embedded confidentiality notice:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message may
contain information that is privileged and confidential and
is intended only for the use of the individual(s) to whom-it -
is addressed. If you receive this message in error, please
notify the sender immediately and delete this electronic,
message and any attachments from your system. Thank
you for your cooperation."

14:2. -The State internet/Intranet is to be used for access to and distribution of

information in direct support of the business of the State of New Hampshire
. according to policy. At no time should the State's internet be used for personal
use or used by the Contractor without written approval by the Department's
Information Security Office.

14.3. All members of the Contractor's or its subcontractor's workforce, with a

workspace in a Department building/facility, shall sign the Department's
Business Use and Confidentiality Agreement upon execution of the agreement
and annually until contract end.

15. Additional Terms

15.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

15.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service pricffrfiS^ic^es

[hRFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire Coalilion tor Citizens with Disabilities
Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center Contrector litilials.
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and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

15.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

15.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) business days of the
Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be
provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or services to
individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf
or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision;
and individuals who have speech challenges.

15.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

15.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New.
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e^g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

15.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval.from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

15.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

15.3.3.1. -Brochures.

15.3.3.2. Resource directories.

15.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

15.3.3.4. Posters.

15.3.3.5. 'Reports.

15.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

15.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

15.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an orderrrrur"^

RFA-2022>DLTSS-06-FAMIL<01 New Hampshire Coalil.ion (or Citizens with Disabilities
Inc. d/b/a Parent Iniomiation Center Contractor Initiats _
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duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility; If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility ■
or the perforrhance of the said seivices, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the .
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that,' during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoriing codes, by-laws and
regulations.

16.Records

16.1. The Contractor shall keep r.ecords that include, but are not limited to:

16.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

/

16.1.2. All records must be rhaintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

*

16.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient
of services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to'determirie eligibility for each

' such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and.all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

16;2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
. Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained' pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,

.  examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreei^gent

RFA-2022-DLTSS-0&-FAMrL-01 New Hampshire Coalition for Ciliiens wilh OtsabOilies
Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center Contractor initials ■'
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and/or' survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon, review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

RFA-2022-OLTSS-06-FAM1L'01 New Hampshire Coalition (or Citizens with OlsabllUies
he. d/b/a Parent Inlormation Center Contractor Inlliats
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Lerl A. Shiblnetlc
C«mmlttl«oer

OcborihD. S(b«tti
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-S034 1*800^52.3345 Ext. 5034

Fax: 603.27l'516O TDD Access: I.800.735.2964
www.dhhs.nh.goy

May 25, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sonunu
• and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to award a contract with New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens.with Disabilities Inc,
d/b/aZ Parent Information Center (VC#177245), Concord, New Hampshire In the amount of
$540,000 for Family-To-Family services for parents of children with and without special health
care needs (CSHCN) to support families and caregivers. with the option to renew for up to two
(2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval for the period July 1, 2021
through June 30, 2023. 50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of-funds In. the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between stale fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-93-930010-51910000 DEFT HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: DLTSS-
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS. DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL
SERVICES

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number, Total Amount

2022 074-500585
Grants for Pub Asst and

Relief
93001000

$180,000

2023 074-500585
Grants for Pub, Asst and

Relief
93001000

$180,000

SubtotB/ $360,000

05-95-93-930010-78580000.DEPf OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DLTSS-
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK
GRANT DD

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 074-500585
Grants for Pub Asst and

Relief
93017858

$15,000

The Deparlmeiit of Health and Human Service*' Mission it tajoincamnnjuitieeonc/fomilin
ill prauidi/ig eftporlttnilies far dtuens to achieiJt health and independence.
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2023 074-500585
Grants for Pub Asst and

Relief
93017858

$15,000

Subtotal $30,000

05-95-42-421110-29780000 DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN
SERVICES DIV, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

-  2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117708 $75,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42117708 $75,000

Subtotal $150,000

Total $.540,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is if for the provision of Family-To-Family services operated
by and for parents of children with and ̂without special health care needs to support families and
caregivers by acting as. a clearinghouse of Information, educatiori and resources to enhance
family knp>wledge and the ability to better manage the impact of their child's special health needs.'
Family-To-Family Services include the Family to Family health information center, Partners in
Health Training services and Birth through 8 Early Childhood Care & Education Advisory Team
Coordination.

Children with special healthcare needs is defined under New Hampshire Revised Statues
Annotated 132:13, II, as children "who have or are at increased risk for chronic physical,
developmental, behavioral, or emotional conditions and who also require health related seryices
of a type of amount beyond that required by children generally." This iricludes children and youth
ages birth to age twenty-one (21) with health conditions who have a biologic, psychological,
and/or cognitive basis; have, lasted or are virtually certain to last for at least one year; result in
limited function, activities or social roles in comparison with health age peers in general areas of
physical, cognitive, emotional and social growth and development; and have a need for medjcal
care and related services, physiological services, or education services over and above the usual
care for the child's age.

The Contractor will maintain a statewide Family-To-Famjiy Health Information Center,
ensuring all Title V programs are family-centered. The Contractor will coordinate with State
agencies and local service organizations to ensure children with special healthcare needs are
adequately represented In system design, planning and service delivery across the system of
care In New Hampshire. The Contractor will also coordinate with the Department In the review
and development of Departmental policies, procedures and proposed changes in services to
ensure participation in decision-making.

The Contractor will facilitate a series of statewide training opportunities for Partners in
Health Family Support Coordinators in addition to sponsoring attendance at conferences.

The Contractor will co-lead the Birth through 8 Early Childhood Cafe & Education Advisory
Team with developing, reviewing, implementing, and refining a charter that identified leadership
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and activities of the Team that; requires membership to be a minimum of 51 percent (51 %) parents
and/or caregivers of chiidren ages birth through eight (8) years; and is capable of advancing to
reflect the changing needs of communities and famiiies.

The Department wiii monitor contracted services by coliecting key data and metrics, which
inciudes client-levei demographic.'performance, and sen/ice data.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from 2/18/2021
through 3/29/2021. The Department received one (1) response that was.reviewed and scored by
a team of quaiified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additionai years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children with special health
care needs in New Hampshire and their families may not tiave access to a primary resource
center for health information and family to family connection.

Area sen/ed: Statewide .

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.99,4 FAIN #B04MC29353, CFDA #93.667 FAIN
2001NHSOSR, and CFDA #93.575 FAIN 2101NHCCDF

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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itr. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Famlly-to Family Services

RFA Name

RFA.2022-OLTSS^6-FAMIL

RFA Number

Bidder Name

1.
NH Family Voices

2- 0

3. 0

5.^

6.^

7.^

8. .

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

- Actual

Points

V
140 ■132

140

140

140
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject;_Family-to-Family Services (Rf A-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

. be clearly identified to'the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

New Flanipshire Coalition for Citizens with
Disabilities Inc. d/b/a Parent Information Center

1.4 Contractor Address

54 Old Siincook Rd,

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-7005

1.6 Account Number

05-95-93-930010-

51910000

05-95-93-930010-

78580000

05-95-42-421110-

29780000

1.7 Cdmplciion Dale '

June 30, 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$540,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency

Nathan D. White. Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
A—OoeuSJsMd »y:

\\.l n , . Date:6/2/20211 AotloOL (awis

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michelle Lewis

Executive Director

1.13 ~^ta1c7Cgency"Sigiialure
/•^PocuSignM by;

(  . ^ ■ Datc:6/2/2021
1  C-

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Deborah D. Scheet2

Director Division of Long Term supports ant

1.15 N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
OeeuSIOMd by:

■  On: 6/3/2021 .

1.17 Approval'lj^ffie^^'mor and Executive Council (ifo/?/j//co6/e;

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Servi

Page 1 of 5
Contractor Initials
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2. SERVICES to BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified In block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perfomi, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, idcnlificd and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofihe State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,

this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hcrcundcr. shall
become eficclive on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement'
shall become effective on the dale the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Coniracior must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to, the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc
contingent upon the availabiliiy and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any slate or federal legislative or execuiivc
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder In excess of such available appropriated funds! In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right lo withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or

■ terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified In block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
ore identified and more particularly described In EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the,
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the .Contractor under this Agreement those
liiquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H, RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrccmcnl to the
contrar>', and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.! Iii" connection with th»c performance of the Services, the
Coniracior shall comply \yiih all opplicoble statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders" of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the"
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to'implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin arid will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3, The Contractor agrees to permit the Slate or United States
access to any of the Conlmclor'sbooks, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agrccmcnl.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary lo perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
othcr\visc authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agrccmcnl, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or ollter person, firm or
corporation wiih whom it is engaged in a combined cfFort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performaricc of this Agreement. This
provisloit shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event ofany
dispute conccming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

Page 3 of 5
Contractor Initials
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constituic an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or .on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
E)efauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
'0 greater or lesser spccificaiion oftime, thirty (30) days from the
. date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, cITective two (2) days afler'giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrincn notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this

- Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period, from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat Che Agreement as, breached, terminate. the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both. . ■ *

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall,
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any funher or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 .Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State .may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that

.  the State is c.xcrcising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
-Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (i 5) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 4

submit to the State a Transition Flan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infprmaiion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or'acquircd or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports.
Flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video

- recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received froni
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State:

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
on independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its eruployccs.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 'Hie Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written nqticc, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Slate. For purposes
.of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute •
assignment. "Change" of Control" means (o) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or. indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all'or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior \vritten notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it Is not a
part>'.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold hamilcss the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims.asscrtcd against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissjjm-irf the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 ITie Contractor shall, at its sole e.xpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property dantage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or c.Kccss; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtinc8te(s) of
Insurance for ail insurance required- under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also funtlsh to the Contracting OfTicer Identified
.in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtiricotc(s)- of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assi^ce to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' • Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. Tlie Contractor shall furnish the Conlraciing Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' .Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in \mting signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govented, inierprcted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or In favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit ariy third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this"
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23: SEVERABILITV. In the evcntany ofthe provisionsofihls
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this. Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed -an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings wlih respect to the subject matter
hereof,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by addlng
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services; available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreertients with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor, shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State, with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate'subcontractor performance.

-oa
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide the following services in this agreement: .

1.1.1. Farfiily to Family Health Information Center services for children and
youth, from birth .to 21.years of age, with or at risk for special health
care needs (CSHCN) and their families who are:

1.1.1.1. Economically disadvantaged;

1.1.1.2. Do not have health insurance:

1.1.1.3. Are transitioning from early intervention into the school
system (3 years of age);

1.1.1.4. Are medically fragile or have complex medical needs; or

1.1.1.5. Are transitioning from pediatric" services to adult services
(teen/young adult).

1.1.2. Partners in Health Training services for individuals who provide
family support services to CSHCN and their families.

1.1.3. Birth through 8 (B-8) Early Child Care Education (ECCE) Advisory
■ Tearn Coordination to ensure family leadership and family voice is
central to system development for early childhood care and
education.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

2. Family-To-Family Health Information Center

2.1. The Contractor shall maintairi a statewide Family-To-Family Health Information
Center.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure Title V programs and efforts for CSHCN are family-
centered which includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. -Offering constructive feedback regarding families' experiencesi with
the Department's health care service- delivery system and
recommendations for improvement.

2.2.2.' Establishing and maintaining regular contact with other parent
advisory and support groups.

2.2.3. , Identifying gaps in data needs and creating solutions for strengthening
family feedback.

2.2.4. Convening a minimum of one (1) forum of diverse family participants,
annually, to collect annotative feedback of their experiences with the
Department.

RFA'2022<OLTSS-06-FAMll-01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities
Inc. dfb/a Parent Information Center Contractor Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Famlly Services

EXHIBIT B

2.2.5. Conducting an annual satisfaction survey that includes key questions
to ascertain families' experiences and the impact of the service
delivery systems.

2.2.6. Maintaining participation in the Council for Youth with Chronic
Conditions.

2.2.7. Maintaining linkages with community support groups which include,
but are not limited to parent groups and hospital or practice-based
groups.

2.3. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with State agencies, local service
organizations, and other professional organizations, as agreed upon with.the
Department. The goals of participating in these meetings include, but are not
limited to:

2.3.1. Ensuring that CSHCN and their unique needs are adequately
represented in, system design, planning and service delivery across
the system of care in New Hampshire.

2.3.2. Providing information about the needs and strengths of families of
CSHCN.

2.3.3. Identifying how the current configuration of the service system impacts
families.

2.3.4. Facilitating the coordination of.services.

2.3.5. Improving the quality of services and effecting system change.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure qualitative information about families' needs and
strengths is. collected through outreach to families of children and youth with
the widest range of disabilities and special health care needs.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure outreach to families of children with deafness
and/or blindness through appropriate organizations and agencies.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure outreach is provided to families receiving early
intervention services and/or who have children ages 0 to 3 years..

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure representation of families of children impacted by
genetic and newborn screening services.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide support to youth and families transitioning from
pediatric healthcare to the adult healthcare system.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to Department staff regarding
consumer, family and/or young adult issues.

2.10. The Contractor shall participate in the review and development of Department
policies, procedures and proposed, changes in services to ensure maintenance
of consumer participation in decision-making. . 03
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Famlly-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B

2.11. The Contractor shall assist In the evaluation,of Department programs and
activities, and with recruiting'additional parents to participate, including the Title
V Maternal and Child Health Block Grant and the Title V Needs Assessment
process.

2.12. The Contractor shall complete a minimum of one (1) annual activity to engage
parents of CSHCN for the purpose of obtaining input on the Title V Block Grant
and to identify both unmet and/or emerging needs.

2.13. The Contractor shall facilitate the involvement of youth, ages 14 to 21 years of
age with special health-care needs to improve health care transition supports
and resources.

2.14. The Contractor" shall assist newly established chronic illness support groups in
their organizational development by offering technical assistance and
administrative support as a strategy to ensure rieeds of families are
communicated to the Department.

2.15. The Contractor shall assist the Department with developing, implementing, and-
revising quality assurance activities and'standards of care.

2.16. The Contractor shall co-locate with the Department or Department designee to
ensure both the Department and the Contractor have access to all materials
and resources available relative to children with special health care needs and
their families. The Department will provide access to photocopiers and office
' workstations and/or furniture for up to six (6) individuals. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Utilize the Department's toll-free 800 telephone number to provide
assistance to families who call the Family-to-Family Health Inforitiation
■Center and to conduct follow-up telephone calls to families to assess
their satisfaction with thejr experience.

■ 2.16.2. Provide all computer equipment necessary to perform the services in
this agreement.

2.17. The Contractor shall assume primary responsibility for information and
educational materials and offerings regarding state, .local and national
resources of interest to families with CSHCN. including information on how to
access the resources. The Contractor shall perform the following activities,
which include but, not are not limited to: .
2.17.1. Working collaboratively with community parent organizations to

enhance training of the supportive parent model.

.2.17.2. Maintaining a database of parents who have completed training who
can be matched with newly diagnosed families.

2.17.3. Maintaining a database that contains and tracks diagnosis and age of
children in order to match to a specific condition -that has been
requested. /—m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B

2.17.4. Developing family support mechanisms.

2.17.5. Collecting data from parents who request parent-to-parent support and
.  related issues.

2.17.6. Providing emotional support to families raising children with special
health care needs.

2.17.7. Offering educational presentations to support groups, family
organizations, and healthcare professionals, in relation to all resources
and services available statewide and nationally.

2.17.8. Managing, updating and enhancing a Parent Lending Library including
. CDC Learn the Sions Act Early : materials and rnaking
recommendations for purchases.

2.17.9. Compiling-and revising health resource directories.

2.17.10. Producing a quarterly parent newsletter.

2.17.11. Developing and distributing health resource directories.
2.17.12.Holding educational and social events, such as support groups,

workshops, seminars and conferences, for parent, youth, and
professionals in collaboration with the Department reflecting current
issues, changes in access to care and best practices.

2.17.13. Supporting and assisting families with-navigating and accessing state
sen/ices and support.

2.17.14. Maintaining social-media presence including but not limited to"" a
website.

2.18. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures.that include, but are not limited to:

2.18.1. Selecting and dismissing staff, volunteers and others.

2.18.2. Supervising and evaluating staff. .

2.18.3. Delivering and coordinating services across the system of services for
CSHCN and their families.

2.18.4. Supporting students/interns interested in working with CSHCN.
2.18.5. Verifying, staff, - volunteer' and' student trainee and/or intern

qualifications.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure the program, and personnel policies and
procedures are accessible and available to all staff and the Department.

2.20. The Contractor shall collect and record all data unique to the Family-to-Family
Health Information Center using a data system that complies with state and

■  federal laws related to privacy and security. The Contractor shall ensurecdata
■ RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAM1L-01 New Hampshire Coaliiion (or Citizens with Disabililios .,. , 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B

collected includes, but is-not limited to:

2.20.1. All six (6) performance measures and outcomes of the Maternal and
Child Health Bureau which jnclude:

2.20.1.1. CSHCN and their families will partner in decision-making at all
levels;

2.20.1.2. CSHCN will receive coordinated, ongoing, comprehensive
care within a medical home;

2.20.1.3. All children will be screened early and continuously for special
healthcare needs;

2.20.1.4. Families of CSHCN will have access to adequate, private
and/or public insurance and financing to pay for services they
need;

2.20.1.5. Community-based service systems will be organized so
families can use them easily; and

2.20.1.6. CSHCN will receive the services necessary to make a
transition to all aspects of adult life, including health care, work
and independence.

2.20.2. New Hampshire specific issues related to the state's public and private
health care financing systems, community services and family and/or
youth nedds.

2.21. The Contractor shall convene bi-monthly staff meetings that include, but are
not limited to:

2.21.1. A review of all objectives to ensure they are being met.

2.21.2. A review of all work plans.

■ 2.21.3. A review of past,and current scheduled activities.

2.22. Partners in Health (PIH) Training

2.22.1. The Contractor shall identify one (1) individual as the point of contact
for PIH Training activities outlined in section 2.22.

2.22.2. The Contractor shall develop and implement a training plan, in
consultation with PIH staff and the Department, that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.22.2.1. Facilitating a rhinimum of ten (10) statewide training
opportunities to Partners in Health Family Support
Coordinators that include:

2.22.2.1.T A minimum of seven (7) training opportunities
lerw
—0«

K

delivered in person, or in a ifianner othewise
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Family Services

EXHIBITS

approved by the Department in writing, including
but not limited to Zoom;

2-22.2.1.2. Certificates of completion to be provided to each
participant in attendance.

2.22.2.1.3. A participant's evaluation of the training, at the
end of each training.

2.22.2.2. Providing an attendance list to the Department for each
training that identifies the names of all participants.

2.22.2.3. Ensuring training topics include, but are not limited to:

2.22.2.3.1. Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening
and Support Certification training for new.
Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators
and Lead Agency supervisors, hosted by Family
Support New Hampshire.

2.22.2.3.2. - Motivational Interviewing.

2.22.2.3.3. Other trainings, as approved .by the Department.

2.22.3. The Contractor shall sponsor a minimum of eight (8) Partners in
Health Family Support Coordinators to attend confererices ensuring:

.  . 2.22.3.1. Five (5) Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators
attend in-state conferences, ensuring sponsorship includes:

2.22.3.1.1. Conference Registration;

2.22.3.1.2. Vendor Table Registration if applicable; and

2.22.3.1.3. Mileage reimburseiment at the current^federal
rate.

,  2.22.3.2. Three (3) Partners in Health Family Support Coordinators
attend the annual' Family Support Conference, ensuring
sponsorship includes:

2.22.3.2.1. Hotel expenses;

2.22.3.2.2. Registration; and

2.22.3.2.3. Travel to and from the Family Support
Conference,

2.23. Birth through 8 (8-8) Early Child Care Education (ECCE) Advisors Team
Coordination

2.23.1. The Contractor shall provide a representative, who will be the
Coordinator, to the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team (herein referred to as
the Team) to provide administrative support that includes:

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire Coalition for Citizens with Disabilities
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family-to-Famlly Services

EXHIBIT B

2.23.1.1. Convening Team meetings:

2.'23.1.2. Co-leading the Team in partnership with the Chair who is
identified by the Team;

2.23.1.3. Organizing and publicizing Team meetings in a manner that
supports maximum meeting participation;

2.23.1.4. Providing the Team members with information to access
Team meetings remotely;

2.23.1.5. Recording Team meeting notes;

2.23.1.6. Presenting Team meeting materials; and

2.23.1.7. Conducting other duties, as defined by the Charter.

2.23.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator co-leads the Team which

includes:

2:23.2.1. Ensuring families and communities have culturally responsive
and equitable opportunities in which'to contribute their lived
experiences relative to the evolution of systems and services
that will directly affect their lives;

2.23.2.2. Promoting parent knowledge and choice through sustained
.family and community engagement, support, resources, and
feedlDack;

2.23.2.3. Utilizing the principles of Boundary Spanning Leadership; and

2.23.2.4. Promoting access to and builds commitment for quality early
childhood programs and services.

2.23.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator assists the Team with
developing, reviewing^ implementing, and refining a charter that:.

2.23.3.1. Identifies the leadership and activities of the Team;

2.23.3.2. Requires membership to be at a minimum of 51% parents
and/or caregivers of children ages birth through, eight (8)
years;

2.23^3,3. Is capable of advancing to reflect the changing needs of
communities and families; and

2.23.3.4. Is reviewed by the Team on a quarterly basis and, with
consensus of members and stakeholders, may be modified or
adjusted as needed.

2.23.4. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator supports and facilitates
the work of the Team to implement its Charter that includes,'but Is not
limited to:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Famlly-to-Family Services

EXHIBIT B

2.23.4.1. Strengthening NH's early childhood infrastructure in all
environments;

.2.23.4:2. Building capacity of families, professional and non-
professional caregivers and educators, statewide, in order to
meet the health and educational needs of children;

2.23.4.3. Ensuring an integrated and coordinated early childhood
governance structure across state, government that is
connected to local communities by conducting ongoing needs
iassessments and engaging in strategic planning;

2.23.4.4. Enhancing of the interoperability of data systems within and
across government agencies to inform and monitor program
and service access, equity, and quality;

2.23.4.5. Promoting parental knowledge and choice through sustained
farriily and community engagement, support, resources and
feedback:

2.23.4.6. Coordinating with the other groups to ensure the work in the
early care and education systems includes input from
local/regional forurns that support parents, professional
caregivers, educators, and community members in order to
ensure the sharing of best practice's;

2.23.4.7. Expanding access; ensuring equity; and improving transitions
across the span of early childhood supports, services, arid
educational environments for children and their-families; and

2.23.4.8. Participatihg in the development and implementation of an
integrated and comprehensive plan for early childhood in New
Hampshire.

2.23.5. The Contractor shall facilitate engagement and communication
between members of the B-8 ECCE Advisory Team, the Council for
Thriving Children (Council), and stakeholders in order to strengthen
the early childhood infrastructure.

2.23.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Coordinator assists the Team in:

2.23.6.1. f\/laintaining and creating partnerships with agencies,
statewide, to increase the ability To coordinate services in
diverse geographic areas;

2.23.6.2. Developing and furthering partnerships with key system of
care community partners and early childhood care and
education partners including, but not limited to: ■

2.23.6.2.1. Afterschool care programs.
f  :09
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2.23.6.2.2. Businesses.

2.23.6.2.3. Child care providers.

2.23.6.2.4. Child welfare services.

2.23.6.2.5. Developmental services and supports.

2.23.6.2.6. Early intervention programs.

2.23.6.2.7. Farhily support services and programs.

2.23.6.2.8. Funders.

2.23.6.2.9. Head Start.

2.23.6.2.10. Higher education.

2.23.6.2.11. Kindergarten through grade three (3) teachers.

2.23.6.2.12. Physical health and behavioral services.

2.23.6.2.13. Preschool special education teachers:

2.23.6.3. Fostering awareness of the importance of early childhood
amongst the public and policy leaders;

2:23.6.4. Developing recommendations to increase the overall
participation of children in existing child care and early
childhood education programs, including outreach to
underrepresented and special populations: and

2:23.6.5. Producing an annual report with details relative to the Team
including, but not limited to:

2.23.6.5.1. Outcomes of assessments, which may include
Boundary Spanning Leadership assessments.

2.23.6.5.2- Accomplishments from the prior year.

2.23.6.5.3. Identification of community needs and gaps in
services and supports.

2.23.6.5.4. Priority setting based on Leadership, Investment,
Voice, and Engagement goals.

3, Staffing

■  3.1. The Contractor shall provide staff who have personal experience as a caregiver
forCSHGN.

3.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing-in the event a position
becomes vacant and include the plan to ensure uninterrupted, services.

3.3. The, Contractor shall, notify the Department in writing, at least 1 week prior to a
new employee's start date, ensuring the notification includes:

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMiL-01 New Hampshire Coalillon for Citizens with Disabilities H ■
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3.3.1. The full name with the middle ihitial of the employee and the official
■  ■ start date.

3.3.2. The work telephone number and email address of the new employee.

3.3.3. The employee's resume.

3:3.4. The Contractor must recruit for and maintain a workforce that is
culturally; linguistically, racially, and ethnically diverse.

3.4. Prior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor
shall, after obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or
persons for whom information is being sought:

3.4.1. Obtain at least two (2) references for the person.

3.4.2. Submit the person^ name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (8^8) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-

.  ■ F:49. .

3.4.3. Submit the person's name for,review against the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA ,
170-G:8-c.

3.4.4. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history, of:

3.4.4.1, Felony conviction; or

3.4.4.2. Any misdemearior conviction involving:

3.4.4.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

3.4.4.2.2. Violence;

3.4.4.2.3. Exploitation;

3.4.4.2.4. Child pornography;

3.4.4.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

3.4.4.2.6. , Theft;

■ 3.4.4.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol;
or ■ ■ ■ ■

3.4.4.2.8. ■ Any other conduct that represents evidence of
behavior that could endanger the well-being of a
consumer.

3.5. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures that include, but are not limited to:

3.5.1. ' Selecting.and dismissing staff, volunteers and others.

3.5.2. Delivering or coordinating services under the provider's direction?'
RFA-2022-DLTSS-O6-FAM1L-O1 New Hampshire Coalition for Cilizens wilh Disabilities .
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3.5.3. , Supporting students/interns interested in working with CSHCN.

3.5.4. Verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee/intern qualifications.

3.5.5. Descriptions of how they are accessible and available to ail agency
staff and BFCS.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health • Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of "Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and- 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).of 1996, and in
accordance withJhe attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which

. has been executed by the parties.

4.2. ' The Contractor shall manage ail confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS information Security
Requirements. .

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with ail Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Reporting Requirements

5.1. , The Contractor shall submit annual reports, in the format designated by ,the
Department, which include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Outreach and encounter statistics.

5.1.2. Quality assurance activities.

5.1.3. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives
for each activity or service funded in quantitative terms, including

' statistical measures for evaluating successful outcornes.

5.1.4. Overall progress toward program goals and supporting statistical
information.

5.1.5. Program effectiveness.

5.1.6. Future plans and goals.

5.1.7.^ ■ Additionaf information as requested by the Department at any time
during the contract period.

.  5.2. The Contractor shall submit supporting documentation related to the outreach
activities and efforts that address the National and State Performance
Measures selected in the Title V BIock Grant annually, no later than May 15**^
of each year.

6. Performance Measures /—m
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6.1. The Contractor shall ensure 85% of respondents to the annual survey indicate
their ability to manage their child's health condition at, home irnproved as a
result of education/guidance provided by the Family-to-Family Health
Information Center.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure 85% of training participants who respond to post
training evaluations rate training as excellent or very good.

6.3. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from the Contractor,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

6.4. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance measures, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, the Contractor must collect and share data with the Department in
a format specified by the Department.

7r AdditionalTerms

7.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

7.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

7.2. FederalCivil Rights LawsCompliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) business days of the
Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication
access and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

7.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

7.3.1. Air documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract \«ith the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and

,  . Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department, of Health and Human
Services."

-M
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7.3.2. AiLmaterials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior .approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

7.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

7.3.3.1. Brochures.

7.3.3.2. Resource directories.

7.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

7.3.3.4. Posters.

7.3.3.5. Reports^

7.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

7.4: Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

7,4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services,, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local, building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

8. Records

8.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

8.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting allcosts and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

8.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable the

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMiL-01 Now Hampshire CoatHion (or Citizens with Disabilities I
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Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

8.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regardirig the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

8.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to" all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.-by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided,
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 50% Federal Funds: Title V Maternal Child Health Block Grant, as
awarded on October 26, 2020, by the Health Resources and Services
Administration, dpDA 93.994, FAIN 80440148 Children and Families
Soclar Services Block Grant, as awarded on March 21, 2021, by the

. Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children
and Families, CFDA 93.667, FAIN 2101NHSOSR, Child Care
Development Block Grant, as awarded, by the Department of Health arid
Humans Services Administration for Children and Families, CFDA
93.575. FAIN2101NHCCDF.

1.2. 50% General Funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
2. Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to BFCS@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Medical Services Technician

Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau for Family Centered Services
"129 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

RFA-2022-DLTSS-06-FAMIL-01 New Hampshire CoaWion for Cllizens with
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7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified iri Form P-37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with fundirig requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to
melissa.s.morin@dhhs.nh.QOv if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.
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12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days-after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisioris of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Titie V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foiiowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfiflENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V; Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they .will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of.fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terminaliori of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

■prohibition;
1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federaj^agency

h
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has .designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include (he
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
conriecUon with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

OocuSiQMd by;

6/2/2021 kidjjJJjU U^iS
Dili Lewis

Title: Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as ideritified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Sen/ices Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Tide XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The.undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, Uiat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or-an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contraci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub<ontraclor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for ■
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to

- Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and .disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificatior) is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be-subject to a civil penalty of not less than S10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Narrie:

OocwSlgn*^ by:

6/2/2021 I /Uj'cIoJIl tuviS ■
DiiT" wmmwnrr^s

Executive Director

Exhibit E - Certiflcalion Regarding Lobbying Vendor Irritlals
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
frND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions .of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
' Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of Nvhy it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The jDrospecUve primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract).is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.' "debarred,"suspended," "Ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineliglbility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant.in a covered .transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required.to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andf

\H
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection vrith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental eritity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) tenmlnated for cause or default

12. VWiere the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier.proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and. belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. virhere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this pro^sal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract)-that It will
Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction^' without modification in all lower tier covered
traiisactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

<^OocuSieBM bjr.

6/2/2021 kiikJiL (aK/i'S

Title:
Executive Director

Exhibit F - CertificaUon Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiHed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Erhployment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b}) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery'of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirerhents;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20G0d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;-

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No.-13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-makirig
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Ernployee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a diie process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will fonward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or.division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's •
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

G—OeeuSlgnM by;
/UtfioiL Ms .

Date Lewis
Title. Executive Director

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONIVIENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's sen/ices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

.  . Contractor Name:

C—DoewSlpAad b)r:
l^dijdL

Date Nanferi4^c'i^'^1e. Lewis
Executive Director

Exhibit H - Cedirication Regarding Contractor Inilials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) . Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of.Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning.given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 1^.501.

e. "Data Aooreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security.of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
.Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by-the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

pd-by

H
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I. "Required by Law' shall have the same'meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shallmean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide'the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. , Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. . As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide sen/ices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi^ss

[ H
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all •
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b., The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
• aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: . '

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 • The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

" mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment \vithin 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity

.  shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ ^iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business-associates, who will be receivi|ig^|HI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of •
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

•  Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to nieet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

]. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available

"  to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, ameridment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests." However, if forwarding the

•  individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such, law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the .
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

W€P«
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

<4)" Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, =
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
-PHI.

{S) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered ■
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately .
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity, shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has ho ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by. or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rfieolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. /\^
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e. SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of.Healthand Human Services nh Coalition for citizens with Disabilities

^eaesftfJb^ Contractor
o.

Signature of Authorized Representative Signdfejre ̂ Authorized Representative
Deborah o. Scheetz Michelle Lewis

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director Division of Long Term Supports and services

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/2/2021 6/2/2021

Date Date

S
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiLTTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial avrard Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS.code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6! Award title descriptive pf the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the enUty (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. Wore than 80% of annual gross" revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25W annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability, and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informationj. and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

-OeeuS)e'>«d ̂

6/2/2021

"Diti—
Title: Executive Director

Exhibil J - Cenificatlon RegsiUing the Federal Funding Contractor IniUais^
Accountability AfvdTrensparoncy Act (FFATA) CompDence 6/2/2021
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FORM A

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

119759876

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUX)HH3/110713

Exhibil J - Certiricolion Regarding ihe Federal Funding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations v/here persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Deisartment
of Commerce. - . .

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by '
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives -
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

H
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mail, ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wiU be considered ah open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can t>e used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the,United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45. C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

(h
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. the Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used, pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance \vith the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS. data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an .expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said

' application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the,secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting service's, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the contiriental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA.' If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices riiust be encrypted and password-protected.'

8. Open vyireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

— 08
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also' known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is erhploying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure" of
information. SFTP.folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
' hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting. Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data'and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it \mII not store, transfer or process data collected in
"connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. "The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have '
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

— DS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. the Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or. disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
.New Hanripshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via .a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in MIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. -The written-certification will include .all details necessary to'
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements 'will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the. termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also-known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows: ~

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls\to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The, Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

[h
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where appiicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the; engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an " internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. Ttie Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures^ systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to

'  system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in^risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New-Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects

•  maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 .and 164) that "govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State, law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://vAvw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
. response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security-breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network. ■

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under-this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must.ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section .)V A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted arid being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty, hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may trar^smit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media, as required in section IV above.

h. in all other .instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,'
and other applicable laws and Federal regulatioris until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, arid .
not\Mthstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirrhed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

H'
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that impiicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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